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Executive summary

e During a year of the state of emergency, the group Lawyers for Justice followed
94 arrests through human rights and legal advocacy. This number of arrests does
not represent all of the arrests that took place during the emergency period.

e The number of arrests related to the state of emergency the group Lawyers for
Justice followed reached 23, which make up 29.1% of the arrests total.

The group followed 20 arrests related to freedom of opinion and expression,
representing 25.3% of all arrests, the alleged accusation of slander against
authority was used 11 times, and the alleged accusation of sectarian strife was
repeated 4 times.

* The group documented 17 arrests related to union activity, a rate of 21.5%,
including 12 arrests related to the “Tafah Al-Kil “ sit-in strike, and 4 arrests on
charges of distributing food parcels.

The group followed 23 cases of people who were arrested for political rea-
sons which makes up to 40.5% of the arrests the group dealt with. Charges of
“possessing weapons" and “collecting money"” were repeatedly used against
most of them to extend their detention before the courts.

e There were also 6 documented cases of detention by orders of governors, a
rate of 7.6%.

33 detainees, 41.7% of the cases the group followed, made allegations of
torture during detention and/or interrogation including verbal abuse, prohi-
bitions or procrastination, and/or pressure to end hunger strike, 21 of the de-
tainees made allegations of physical assault or torture.

* 41 detainees, 51.9% of the cases the group followed, confirmed that the se-
curity services did not present arrest warrants against them when they were.
arrested.

Eighteen people, 22.8% of the cases the group followed, were arrested and
released without trial.

o Of all the arrest cases, judicial charges were brought agamst only 3 detamees :
“while 6 were acqwtted and 12 investigation files were not submitted to the
- courts, while 22 are still before the courts. =

Although a state of emergency was declared to combat the Coronavirus, 43



detainees, 54.4 % of the arrests the group followed, indicated in their testimo-
nies that health protocols were not or only partially followed during the arrest,

investigation, and detention process.

e The occupation forces arrested 6 people after the security services released
them, and two of them stated after their release from the occupation prisons
that, the interrogations with them revolved around similar incidents.

e Atleast 4 detainees reported that they were incited against the group “Law-
yers for Justice” by the security services during interrogation.




Who are we?

The group Lawyers for Justice began its legal and human rights activitiesin 2011,
through an individual initiative that emerged and developed in the wake of in-
creasing cases of human rights violations in the occupied West Bank governor-
ates, atatime when the human rights system was under increasingly widespread
attack, amidst the attacks by executive bodies on the powers and actions of the
legislative and judicial branches, and the lack of supervision of the executive
branch’s performance and holding it accountable.

The Lawyers for Justice Group, through its members in various governorates of
the West Bank, provideslegal support to cases that are subject to violations by the
security services against the backdrop of the exercise of freedom of expression,
freedom of association, and freedom of political pluralism. The nature of this
support consists of legal representa-
tion before the Palestinian courts and
prosecution offices, documentation
of human rights violations, and edu-
cation on the rights of detainees from
the time of the arrest until release.

In West Bank particularly, in the cas-
es it followed, the group was able to
document violations and share the
recommendations it adopted with of-
ficial authorities to identify and limit
violations.
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The human rights situation in light
of the declaration of the state of
emergency:

Since the President of the Palestinian Authority declared a state of emergency on
3/5/2020 and extended it until the date of publication of this report, the group
has been tracking and documenting cases and instances of human rights viola-
tions in light of the spread of the Coronavirus epidemic in Palestinian cities and
governorates under the control of the Palestinian Authority.

This report highlights the acts of arrest on the grounds of political affiliation, the
exercise of freedom of speech and expression, freedom of association, and arrest
orders issued by governors. Given the declared and renewed state of emergency
and the extent to which the executive branch is using these conditions to restrict
and suppress constitutional rights guaranteed in the amended Palestinian Basic
Law, such as freedom of speech and expression, freedom of work, and union
activity.

The report also monitors the extent to which health measures are being applied
in detention centers and sheds light on the practical cases documented by the
group which has been followed up by its legal staff from the declaration of the
state of emergency on 3/5/2020 to 3/5/2021.






The extent to which the procedures and
policies taken during the declaration of
the state of emergency are consistent
with the amended Palestinian Basic
Law and the basic human rights trea-
ties to which the state of Palestine has
acceded.

A state of emergency is considered as “temporary exceptional circumstances”
usually declared when there is a threat to the security and stability of the state,
under which many of the rights and public freedoms of individuals are excep-
tionally restricted. The Palestinian legislature deliberately regulated the gener-
al rules governing the state of emergency in the seventh chapter of the 2003
amended Palestinian Basic Law. Articles (110-114), specify the cases that re-
quire the declaration of a state of emergency and the formal and objective legal
controls necessary for its implementation, also, these articles, specify the bodies
that have the authority to implement them.

As a result of the widespread of the Coronavirus in Palestinian towns and villages
under the control of the Palestinian Authority; The President declared a state of
emergency on 5.3.2020 for 30 days, by Decree -Law No. (1) 2020; to counter
the risk of the outbreak of the Coronavirus and prevent its spread, the President
subsequently issued Decree-Law No. (7) 2020 regarding the state of emergen-
cy, which provided regulations and measures to be taken in the declared state
of emergency and the competent authorities to implement it, and explained the
penalties forits violation, in addition to some relevant decisions and instructions,
based on the provisions of the state of emergency contained in Chapter Seven of
the Basic Law.
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On 3/4/2020 and in light of the suspension of the work of the dissolved Legis-
lative Council by a decision of the Constitutional Court in 2018; The Palestinian
President issued the second Decree-Law that extended the first state of emer-
gency for another 30 days, it was also followed by a new declaration of the state
of emergency by the President on 5/5/2020 declaring the state of emergency
for more 30 days. The renewal was repeated every two months by declaring a
new state of emergency and extending each of the thirty days until the date of
issuance of this report.

The amended Basic Law, which sits at the top of hierarchy as a source of law
in Palestine and is considered as a constitution, in its article (110) governs the
proclamation of a state of emergency. The issuance of a Presidential Decree by
the President of the Palestinian National Authority, which includes the purpose
of the declaration, the territory it covers, and the time for its implementation,
provided that the time must not exceed 30 days, which was expressed in the
provisions of Article (3) of the current State of Emergency Decree. The duration
of the declared state of emergency to meet the threat of the spread of the coro-
na virus; 30 days, and article (1) of the decree declaring the state of emergency
added that its provisions apply to the Palestinian territories to meet the threat of
the Coronavirus and prevent its spread.

With regard to the announcement by the Palestinian President on 3/4/2020 to
extend the state of emergency for an additional 30 days, according to Presiden-
tial Decree No. (3) for the year 2020; the President invoked the provisions of
Basic Law, but its content essentially contradicted the provisions of the law, as
the Presidentinvoked his “constitutional duties to take full care of the Palestinian
people”, but by referring to the provisions of paragraph (2) of the article (110)
of the Basic Law, it requires the approval of two-thirds of the members of the
Legislative Council to extend the state of emergency for another 30 days, but
the Legislative Council was dissolved several years ago, and this is confirmed by
the interpretive decision of the Supreme Constitutional Court No. (10/2018).
In this case, the monitoring of all actions and measures taken during the state of
emergency is absent, and therefore, the President's decision to extend the state
of emergency contradicts Article (110) Palestinian Basic Law.

And for renewing the declaration of the state of emergency on 5/5/2020 for an
additional 30 days according to Presidential Decree No. (4) Of 2020, it was car-
ried out without a specific constitutional reference according to the Basic Law, as
the law did not regulate the procedures for re-declaring the state of emergency
for the same reasons for which it was declared the first time, and there are no
legal justifications for the president to declare a new state of emergency.

The group Lawyers for Justice believes that the government can take action that
will enable it to carry out its duties when faced with such health conditions as
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exist in the Palestinian territories, without the need to issue a decree extending
and re-proclaiming the state of emergency, there is more than one law in force
that can be applied to limit the spread of the pandemic, such as Public Health Act
No. (20) 2004, Criminal Law No. (16) 1960 and Criminal Procedure Act No. (3)
2001, Consumer Protection Act No. (21) 2005, and Civil Defense Act No. (3)
1998, and other laws that could be the basis for dealing with this situation, and
not by declaring and repeatedly extending the state of emergency.

In addition to the violations to which some people were subjected during the pe-
riod of the state of emergency, during which freedom of opinion and expression
was violated and many citizens were arbitrarily imprisoned for sharing their views
on social media, or through arrests targeting activists and trade unionists for de-
manding reforms and fighting corruption, as well as against the background of
political affiliation, without regard to fair trial procedures and standards, some
of them raised allegations of torture, beatings, bad-treatment and other illegal
methods, as well as violations to which citizens were subjected as a result of the
violation of precautionary measures taken during the declaration of the state of
emergency.

In this regard, the group Lawyers for Justice believes that the evaluation of the
legislative and judicial process during the state of emergency proves its violation
of the principle of the rule of law and the separation of powers, as well as the
violation of public rights and freedoms by the executive branch, which exercises
many of the powers of the legislative and judicial authorities without the slight-
est oversight of its work.

All violations committed by the bodies responsible for enforcing the law, consti-
tute a clear violation of the provisions of the Palestinian legislation applied under
normal circumstances and even during the state of emergency, especially those
enshrined in the amended Palestinian Basic Law of 2003, the Palestinian Crim-
inal Procedures Law, Palestinian General No. (20) Of 2004, and other relevant
national legislation.

On the other hand, the practices of law enforcement agencies constitute a vi-
olation of international human rights law, especially since the State of Pales-
tine has obligations under the basic human rights conventions it has acceded
to, in particular, the Convention against Torture and Other Cruel, Inhuman
or Degrading Treatment or Punishment (CAT) and International Covenant on
Civil and Political Rights (ICCPR), which regulates the declaration of a state of
emergency in article 4 (1), which requires multistep inquiry to determine the
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legitimacy of the declaration of states of emergency, these requirements are as
follows; (1) the state must officially proclaim a state of emergency; measures
taken by the state must be (2) necessary, (3) proportionate, and (4) compliant
with other international law obligations; and (5) the state must officially in-
form the international community of its intent to impose such measures.

The same article in section (2) affirms that articles 6, 8 (paragraphs 1 and 2),
11, 15, 16 and 18 of the ICCPR contain nondraggable rights, this also includes
article 7 which stresses the prohibition of torture and other cruel, inhuman or
degrading treatment or punishment, even in time of emergency.

Furthermore, the Universal Declaration of Human Rights (UDHR) in its article
9, prohibits arbitrary arrest and detention. According to the Working group on
Arbitrary Detention, deprivation of liberty is arbitrary if a case falls into one of
the following three categories:

A) Wheniitis clearly impossible to invoke any legal basis justifying the depriva-
tion of liberty (as when a person is kept in detention after the completion of his
sentence or despite an amnesty law applicable to him)

B) When the deprivation of liberty results from the exercise of the rights or
freedoms guaranteed by articles 7, 13, 14, 18, 19, 10 and 21 of the Universal
Declaration of Human Rights and, insofar as States parties are concerned, by
articles 12,18, 19, 21, 22, 25, 26 and 27 of the International Covenant on Civil
and Political Rights,

C) When the total or partial non-observance of the international norms relating
to the right to a fair trial, spelled out in the Universal Declaration of Human
Rights and the relevant international instruments

accepted by the States concerned, is of such gravity as to give the deprivation
of liberty an arbitrary character.
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The report

The group Lawyers for Justice followed 79 arrests during the year of the state
of emergency through its members of lawyers and human rights defenders in
all areas of West Bank; Through human rights advocacy and legal representa-
tion before the relevant authorities, courts and prosecutors’ offices, in addition
to advocacy campaigns conducted for those subjected to arbitrary arrests on the
grounds of freedom of opinion and expression, union action and political and
party pluralism.

Arrests related to the state of emergency:

The group Lawyers for Justice followed 23 arrests, 29.1% of all arrests. Their
causes were related to the procedures of the state of emergency:

The Group followed up on two cases of detention involving arbitrary or vague
measures. In the first case, the journalist A.H. was detained at a security check-
point at the entrance to Tulkarm, he was on his way from Nablus to the city of
Anabta with his relatives, he told the group that he had been ill-treated and beat-
en at the checkpoint. It was later negotiated with him that in exchange for his
release, he would waive his right and not press charges. In the second case, the
Imam A.A. was arrested for holding Friday prayers in a schoolyard in Jenin gov-
ernorate, despite the police officer allowing it in a public square, his arrest ac-
companied firing of tear gas canisters.
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The Group recorded 3 cases of arrests because on the ground of freedom of
expression about the measures taken by the government, or about the fairness
of distribution of relief supplies and food parcels during the state of emergency.

In addition, 4 arrests were followed by the group due to the arrestees’ involve-
ment in food parcel collection and distribution campaigns, given the economic
situation caused by the Corona pandemic, and because of the arrestees’ political
affiliation.

The group legally represented 12 detainees accused of violating the state of
emergency because the “Tafah Al-Kil " movement had called for a sit-in in Ra-
mallah against corruption.

The group documented the arrest of 3 for violating the nighttime lockdown,
while the investigation and charges against them focused on their political affil-
iations.

U) Arrest for freedom of opinion and expression:

The group documented 20 arrests on the ground of exercising their right to
freedom of opinion and speech, this makes up to 25.3 % of all arrests, including
17 arrests on the ground of posting on social media.

12 cases of arrests were documented on the ground of the publication of political
and social opinions and criticism of corruption, and other 3 cases on the ground
of criticism of regulations related to the state of emergency.

Arrests related to freedom of opinion and expression were accompanied to
charges used repeatedly against activists and journalists to restrict publication
and freedom of opinion and expression, as the Public Prosecution charged 11
detainees with “defamation of authority” and 4 detainees with “inciting sec-
tarian strife.”

Cybercrime Decree-Law No (10) 2018 was used in 11 arrests, specifically Article
45 of the law; which allows the importation of any Article from any other law.

It is worth noting that Article 19 (1) of the ICCPR guarantees that “ Everyone

shall have the right to hold opinions without interference”, and Article 19 (2)
guarantees that “Everyone shall have the right to freedom of expression; this
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right shall include freedom to seek, receive and impart information and ideas of
allkinds...", article 19 (3) states that the exercise of these rights “may be subject
to certain restrictions, but only such as are prescribed by law and are necessary
to protect publicorder.” The Human Rights Committee on the Application of the
International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights affirmed in its General Com-
ment No. (34), that every restriction placed on the exercise of these rights must
comply with the strict criteria of necessity and proportionality.

\Nlv

]ﬁ_“a & Arrest on the ground of union activities:

The group followed 17 arrests related to the right to freedom of association,
which makes up to 21.5% of the arrests monitored during the state of emergen-
cy, these cases include 12 persons detained on the ground of activists support
the “Tafah Al-Kil “ sit-in which demands reforms and fights against corrup-
tion, in addition, 4 arrests were documented on the ground of accusations of
distributing food parcels during the quarantine, and one arrest case was docu-
mented on the ground of university students union activities.

The “Tafah Al-Kil " demonstration

The group followed up on the arrest of 12 people on the ground of calls by Pales-
tinian movements and activists to hold a sit-in demanding a reform and fighting
corruption, known as a “Tafah Al-Kil “ sit-in, while the number of detainees was
greater than that.

Eleven of them were arrested on the supposed day of the sit-in, which was to be
held at the Al-Manara square in the center of Ramallah on 7/19/2020, while one
activist was arrested from his workplace the day after the sit-in.

The 11 detainees have stated in their testimonies to the group; that they were
arrested while they were on their way to the location of the sit-in or standing
alone near Al-Manara square where the peaceful assembly has not even started.

Furthermore, an activist was arrested from his workplace the next day, he stated
in his testimony that he was not present at the sit-in the day before, due to his
commitment to quarantine in light of his contact with someone infected with the
Coronavirus, which contradicts one of the charges brought against the detain-
ees. The prosecution presented two charges against the detainees, these charges
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are “the participationin anillegal gathering” statedin Article (165.1) of the Penal
Code No. (16) 1960, and “the violation of the measures and procedures taken
to achieve the goals of the declaration of a state of emergency, " states in Article
(1.3) of the Decree-Law No. (7) 2020 regarding the state of emergency.

Two of the detainees stated in their testimony that they were at the scene coinci-
dentally, and they were randomly arrested for being there while having nothing
to do with the event or the activists who called for it.

While the prevention of peaceful assembly and arrests was based on the emer-
gency law and the application of measures to limit the Coronavirus, 9 of the de-
tainees reported that security personnel did not comply with health protocols
fully, and sometimes partially.

Eight of them said that the process of transferring or detaining them witnessed
overcrowding that violates health protocols, and one of them stated that he was
arrested with the rest of the detainees despite being in quarantine by orders of
the Ministry of Health, and he was placed with the rest of detainees before the
results of the laboratory examination for Coronavirus were revealed.

Distribution of food parcels

The group followed the security services' investigation with 4 community activ-
ists, after they were arrested for activities related to collecting and/or distribut-
ing food parcels, in light of what the lockdown caused, as many people stopped
working and could not provide for their families. While two of them were re-
leased within the first 24 hours of their detention, the other activists were re-
ferred to the Public Prosecution Office, which charged them with “collecting
and receiving funds from illegal associations”, one of them was acquitted by the
ruling of the court, while the Public Prosecution decided to save the file of the
other detainee. However, the prosecution of the 4 activists was based on the
ground of their political affiliations.

” Detention on the ground of political party plu-
1 ralism:

The group followed 32 cases of detainees during the state of emergency, who
were detained for political reasons. This violates the right to political and par-
tisan pluralism. During the reporting period, 40.5% of all the arrests the group
followed, had specific charges that kept being used repeatedly against political
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activists and university students, while the actual investigation by the security
services was based on political grounds.

During the interrogation session before the Public Prosecutor and the lawyer of
the Lawyers for Justice Group, the detainee N.J. who had been charged with
“collecting and receiving money from illegal associations" stated that: “This ac-
cusation was placed as a legal way out for my arrest. | am a political prisoner and
| am being investigated about my participation in the welcoming of my friend
who was released from jail, and that | have raised flags. | am being held respon-
sible for this act...This was only social participation since the released prisoner is
my friend and he was my prison mate. As for the illegal money, | definitely deny
the accusation” .

The Public Prosecution office used the charge of “possession of weapons” 19
times, while the charge of “collecting and receiving money from illegal asso-
ciations” was used 6 times. These are the two most frequently used charges in
political arrests to extend the detention period, while the actual investigation is
conducted in different ways. Other charges of political detainees such as “incit-
ing sectarian strife” and “illegal gathering” were also used.

While 26 detainees mentioned in their testimonies to the group Lawyers for Jus-
tice that the investigation focused on political activities or political affiliations,
in addition to 9 who reported that the investigation was focused on the reasons
for their arrest by the occupation, 5 detainees confirmed that the investigation
was about student activities in universities, and 3 detainees confirmed that
they were questioned about their participation in the welcoming activities of
freed prisoners, in addition to other topics, such as the investigation of a de-
tained friend or relative, receiving prisoner dues, etc.

C C| Detention by the Governors’ order

The group documented 6 cases of detention by orders of governors, at a rate
of 7.6% of the total arrests the group followed, and the common denominator
among those arrests was the reason for the arrests, which was usually related
to political affiliation or political differences, according to the testimonies of the
detainees.

Detention under governors' custody is considered administrative detention with-
out a judicial decision or permission, as the Palestinian Basic Law affirmes in Arti-
cle (11.2), which indicates that “No one may be arrested, searched, imprisoned,
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or his freedom restricted in any way or prevented from moving, except by a ju-
dicial order per the provisions of the law." Furthermore, these detentions violate
Articles (8, 10, and 11) of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights (UDHR),
and Articles (9/3) and (14/3) of the ICCPR, to which the State of Palestine has
acceded.

In one of these cases, a detainee was transferred to the custody of the governor
after the security apparatus refused to release him following the issuance of a
judicial decision to release him, while the group filed a complaint and judicial ap-
peals in the Supreme Court of Justice against the decisions of two arrests under
the custody of the governors, one of them was released before the court issues a
decision on his case, and the other was referred to the Public Prosecution and the
Magistrate's Court, and an indictment was filed against him.

Allegations of torture and illtreatment during

arrest and/or detention:

Thirty-three detainees, 41.7% of the cases the group followed raised allega-
tions of torture or beating during the arrest and/or interrogation process, in-
cluding verbal abuse, denial or procrastination in medical treatment, and/or
pressure to push detainees to end their hunger strike. This violates Article (13)
of the Palestinian Basic and the the Convention against Torture and Other Cruel,
Inhuman or Degrading Treatment or Punishment (CAT), to which the state of
Palestine has acceded.

At least 5 detainees were beaten during the arrest process, according to their
testimony. The journalist A.H in his testimony says: “Within seconds, 5-10 sol-
diers threw me to the ground and they indescribably punched and kicked me
with their legs, | did not count them exactly, then my head was injured, and the
wounds required two medical stitches, | also lost my molar by a punch of a sol-
dier, not to mention the blood that streamed on my face and what was left of my
torn blouse."

While the activist, S.Z said in his testimony that he was beaten during the arrest
in the company of his child, who burst into tears, S.Z asked the security to allow
him to get his young child home, however, the security forces refused, and trans-
ferred him to the Preventive Security headquarters in Hebron along with his child
before allowing him to get his child to the house, where the security left the child
on the street near the house to return alone.
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While 16 detainees raised allegations of torture during the investigation,
20.2% of the cases the group followed. The torture varies between hanging
from the ceiling, hanging by what is called a cupboard or refrigerator, beating,
slapping, spanking, and forcing detainees to take off clothes in the bitter cold.
Some of these allegations were documented before the courts and prosecutors,
the other cases were documented in the detainees’ testimonies for the group, at
the same time, the judicial authorities refused to implement at least two rulings
of the court that ordered to send the detainees to the forensic office.

The student KH described what is known as the cupboard or refrigerator where
he was hanged, he said that it's like a wardrobe, its door is closed while the de-
tainee is inside, as for its height, he said that he can stand in it but its other di-
mensions are about 80 cm x 80 cm”

Meanwhile, K.A narrated in his testimony that he was beaten while being trans-
ported to the detention center with an electric stick on his feet, he was also in-
sulted during his interrogation, his religion was insulted too, and the security
officers asked him to repeat some sentences during the beating, where they told
him, according to his testimony to say: “Abu Mazen is my master, and Majed
Faraj is my master”. He was also beaten and insulted during the eight-day inter-
rogation period with fists on his head, as a result, his sense of hearing weakened,
and he was leftina 1.5 x 1.5 meters cell and was forced to take off his shoes and
socks and to stay in light clothes, and cold water was poured to cover the spot
where he was standing, he requested a referral to a doctor, but the investigators
refused.

20 detainees mentioned in their testimony that they were insulted verbally,
misstreated, and threatened. 6 detainees were pressured to end the hunger
strike, and 5 detainees said they were prevented from receiving medical treat-
ment or medicine, or there was procrastination in providing them with medical
treatment.

Integrity of legal procedures

The group Lawyers for Justice monitored the legal procedures of the judicial en-
forcement agencies and the Public Prosecution office and their compliance with
the Palestinian Criminal Procedure Law.

41 detainees (51.9% of all cases) stated in their testimonies to the group that
the judicial authorities did not present arrest warrants against them, this violates
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Article (30) of the law, which lists only 3 cases in which a suspect may be arrested
without presenting an arrest warrant:

1. In case of flagrante delicto in a felony or misdemeanor, which entails impris-
onment for a period exceeds six months. 2. If the person opposes judicial officer
while performing his job, or if the person being arrested for a legitimate purpose
fled or tried to flee from the location of arrest. 3. If a person committed a crime
or was accused of committing a crime, and refused to give his name or address,
or if he did not have a known place of residence in Palestine.”

In addition, 18 persons were arrested and released without being presented to
the judicial authority, in violation of Article (107.1) of the Palestinian Criminal
Procedures Law; which indicates that the detainee must be handed over to the
Public Prosecution Office for investigation within 24 hours.

According to the testimonies of the detainees, the group documented 17 cas-
es of arrest, 21.5% of the total number of detainees, that were followed by a
summons from the judicial control agencies, which do not have the jurisdiction
to send oral or written summons without a warrant of arrest from the Public
Prosecution, a case was documented in which the presentation of the arrested
person to the Public Prosecution Office was delayed for more than 48 hours after
his arrest.

As for the legal procedures after the arrest, in 5 cases, 6.3% of the total num-
ber of detainees, the security services were late in implementing court ruling to
release the detainees, in this context, detainee KH says in his testimony: “The
General Intelligence Service refused to comply with the court's ruling immediate-
ly, while one of the interrogators told him that his release would be according to
the assessment of the security apparatus and not according to the court’s ruling,
he also confirmed that the investigator told him that “he will not be released on
the same day and the executive authority is higher than the judiciary”.

These cases indicate that arrestis used as a punishmentin many cases, especially
in the cases of detainees who were acquitted of the charges, and the cases where
the Public Prosecution decided to save or keep their investigative files without
court referral. The courts decided to acquit 6, 7.6% of the detainees, and the
Public Prosecution decided to preserve 12 investigation files, 15.1% of the ar-
rests, due to insufficient evidence or lack of evidence, which indicates the lack of
seriousness of the investigations that led to their arrest. 3 files remained without

22



referral to the court and without preservation, 3.8% of the total of arrests. 22
cases, 27.8% of the total, are still in trial, as the court postponed a number of
them, and in 19 cases, the hearing was delayed due to the absence of witnesses
in the Public Prosecution Office.

Courts' rulings of guilty were limited to only 3 detainees, 3.8% out of all the
arbitrary detention cases the group followed during the state of emergency,
one of the cases was related to freedom of expression on social media platforms,
the ruling came outin the absence of a defense lawyer. The other two cases were
related political files; the detainees were sentenced quickly without due process,
and with the absence of the defense lawyers due to the strike of the lawyers' Bar
Association.

@ Security compliance to safety measures related
1 to Coronavirus

Although the reason for declaring a state of emergency is to combat the spread
of the Coronavirus, some detention cases were justified by the state of emer-
gency, especially those that were related to the charges of violating it, howev-
er, atleast 43 detainees confirmed in their testimonies to “Lawyers for Justice”
that there was full or partial incompliance with the health safety measure
during the arrest, investigation, or detention.

40 detainees, 50.6% of the total, reported that security personnel or investi-
gators did not fully or partially comply with wearing masks and health proto-
cols during the stages of arrest and/or investigation. 10 detainees, 12.6% of
the total reported being transferred and/or detained in overcrowded vehicles
or detention rooms.
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]niniiﬂi E"i"[ Detention in Israel

The group observed that the occupation forces arrested 6 of the detainees after
they were released from Palestinian detention centers, and two of them stat-
ed after their release from the occupation prisons, that the investigation of the
occupation was similar to the cases for which they were arrested by the Pales-
tinian security services.

Journalist A.Z stated in his testimony to “Lawyers for Justice” that the investi-
gation with the occupation forces was related to facts that were being investi-
gated by the Palestinian Security Agencies, while the activist A.N was tried at
Israeli courts for charges of “providing aid and belonging to a prohibited orga-
nization,"” and he was interrogated by the security services regarding the distri-
bution of parcels during the pandemic.

A\

For years, the group has been subjected to incitements, as the security agen-
cies incite the detainees against the group and its lawyers, during the year of
the emergency, 4 cases of incitement were detected, as follows:

Incitement against the group Lawyers for

Justice

1. Detainee M.G reported that the legal advisor of the General Intelligence Ser-
vice had incited him against lawyer Muhannad Karaja, where he told him that
the appointment of the aforementioned lawyer is delaying his release.

2. Detainee N.A reported that part of his interrogation was about his relation-
ship with the group “Lawyers for Justice” and its funding sources; he was sum-
moned again later, and the interrogation was focused on the group.

3. Detainee M.Z stated that the incitement against the group was represented
by the interrogator's statement:” If you had not entrusted them, your deten-
tion would not have been extended to fifteen days in court. “
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4. Detainee A.A stated in his testimony that after requesting to contact lawyer
Muhannad Karaja, the interrogator refused that and told him:" You're ruining
yourself"

5. Detainees from the “Tafah Al-Kil * demonstration case have confirmed to
Lawyers for Justice that there is incitement against the group by the Police di-
rector, prison director, and police officers during their arrest in Al - Baloue pris-
on.
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Cases were followed by the group
during the declaration of the state of
emergency:

During the preparation of this report, the group divided the cases that
were followed by its lawyersinto four categories, as follows:

1. Arrest for freedom of opinion and expression.

2. Arrest for unions related work.

3. Arrest for political and party pluralism.

4. Arrest under Governor's custody.
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The details of the cases are as follows: | [coviD-19

e

First: - Arrest for freedom of opinion and expression

Wa¥ 1.z kh:

The General Intelligence Service arrested Z. Kh in Tulkarm on 14
April 2020, later on; the Public Prosecution investigated him on
the charge of “insulting the authority”, listed under Article (191)
of the Penal Code No. (16) 1960, while most of his interrogations
focused on a conversation with news page on Facebook, and what
the official authorities considered “an insult to the president and
the Palestinian Authority".

Later, Tulkarm Magistrate's Court extended his detention for 15
days, while the Public Prosecution referred his case to the court,
as the investigation was closed, and an indictment was presented
against him, since then, the court sessions have continued.

2. M. S:

Preventive Security forces in Tulkarm arrested M.S On 15 April
2020; the Public Prosecution interrogated him for “defama-
tion against the authority”, in violation of Article (45) of the De-
cree-Law No. (10) on cybercrimes, and as evidenced by Article
(191) of the Penal Code No. (16) 1960, the indictment against
him stated that “he was arrested by the Preventive Security Service
in Tulkarm, then he was referred for investigation for “spreading
chaos, destabilization, and incitement against the Palestinian Au-
thority and its security apparatus through his Facebook account”,
his investigation focused on a Facebook post in which he criticized
the performance of the Palestinian Authority institutions during
the lockdown and what he considered as “an unfair distribution of
food parcels”.

28



It is noteworthy that the Public Prosecutor had included the charge
of “possession of a weapon" in order to extend his detention. Lat-
er, the accusation against him was amended to “defaming the
authority”, noting that the Public Prosecution had authorized the
Preventive Security Agency to investigate him on April 19, 2020,
his detention was extended for 48 hours, while the Tulkarm Mag-
istrate’s Court extended his detention on 21 April 2020 for seven
days, he was later released on a cash bail of 200 dinars to be depos-
ited in the court’s box.

On 11 June 2020; the file was transferred to the court after the
closing of the investigation, the list of indictment was submitted
against him, while the session was postponed for the purpose of
informing the prosecution witnesses, the court sessions proceed-
ed and were postponed several times to inform the prosecution
witnesses, finally, he was declared innocent of the charges against
him for lack of evidences.

His family had told the group Lawyers for Justice that the security
forces, upon arresting him, did not comply with the health proce-
dures and protocols established following the declaration of the
state of emergency.

3. A. Kh:

The Preventive Security Agency in Ramallah arrested A.Kh On 18
April 2020; he was presented to the Public Prosecution on April 20,
2020, after 48 hours he was interrogated on the charge of “caus-
ing sectarian strife by using the electronic network" according to
the text of Article (45) of the Decree of Cybercrime Law 2018, and
Article (150) of the Penal Code No. (16) 1960, on basis of a com-
ment he made on a post on the Facebook page of the Governor of
Ramallah and Al-Bireh.

Later, his detention at the Ramallah Magistrate's Court was ex-
tended for 15 days, while he was released on April 30, 2020, on a
personal bail of 2000 dinars, his case was not referred to the com-
petent court and no decision was issued to save it until the date of
publication of the report.
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4. H. Kh, media student at Birzeit University:

The Preventive Security Service in Tulkarm arrested H. Kh, a me-
dia student at Birzeit University, on 30 April 2020 after being sum-
moned for an interview at the aforementioned agency.

He was later referred to the Public Prosecution, which investigated
him on the charge of “inciting racial strife”. His investigation file
stated that he was accused of inciting against the Palestinian Au-
thority in front of other citizens, while he was interrogated about
his contact with local media websites and sending them news and
media materials, and about his union and student activity in the
university.

Later, Tulkarm Magistrate Court extended his detention for 7 days,
he was released on 7 July 2020 with a personal guarantee of one
1000 Jordanian Dinars, before his file was referred to the court and
an indictment was filed against him.

On 9/6/2020, the court acquitted him on the grounds of the ab-
sence of sufficient evidence about committing any act or offense
related to “inciting racial strife”, the court also considered his ac-
tivity with media websites and sending news to them as a justifica-
tion for being a media student, affirming that it is not permissible
to prosecute him for that.

5.).J,aunionactivistinacampaignagainstthe
Palestinian telecommunications companies,
named “It's enough":

The Police General Investigation Department in Ramallah has ar-
rested a union activist in the campaign, “Itis enough, telecommu-
nications companies”, on May 31, 2020, J.J was referred to the
Public Prosecution Office, which charged him with “transmitting
fabricated and insulting news over the phone", in violation of Ar-
ticle (91), Paragraph (A) of the Wireless Communications Law No.
(3) 1996, his interrogation focused on a comment he made on
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the Facebook page of the campaign “It's enough telecom compa-
nies”, in hiscomment, J.J criticized “corruption and high prices" in
the telecommunications sector and called for reform.

On 1.6.2020, the Public Prosecution referred J.J's case to the com-
petentcourt, where he was charged with the aforementioned accu-
sation. At the same session, he admitted to writing the comments,
he informed the court that he intended to move the telecommuni-
cations sector, in light of “the high prices”, while the Public Prose-
cution office concluded its statement in the light of his admission of
the publications. The defense, represented by the group Lawyers
for Justice, demanded that he be declared innocent, as there is no
crime to be prosecuted, however, the court decided to convict him
and sentence him to three months of imprisonment, on the same
day the sentence was replaced with a fine.

Subsequently, the defense team appealed the court's ruling, upon
which the Ramallah Court of First Instance in its appeals capaci-
ty decides to cancel it and return the file to the Magistrate's Court
which re-issued its ruling to declare his innocence of the charge,
on 8.12.2020, since the act attributed to him does not constitute
a crime. Also, in its decision, the court affirmed the importance of
respecting freedom of opinion and expression enshrined in the Pal-
estinian Basic Law.

6. F.Y, community activist:

A joint security force arrested the community activist F. Y before
he was transferred to the Preventive Security Service in Tulkarm
on 2.6.2020, without showing an arrest warrant from the compe-
tent authorities, this was due to his participation in a sit-in due to
the power outage in Tulkarm, and on his participation in the Great
Dawn campaign. During his arrest, the security forces confiscated
books from his home.

On 4.6.2020, he was released without being brought before any
competent judicial authority, in violation of Article (107/1) of the
Criminal Procedure Law: which states that the detainee must be
handed over to the Public Prosecution Office for investigation
within 24 hours of his arrest.
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7.S.S, ajournalist and community activist:

The Preventive Security in Tulkarm arrested the journalistand com-
munity activist S. S on 9.6.2020 and handed him over to the Gen-
eral Investigation, where the Public Prosecutor’s Office investigat-
ed him on charges of “defaming the authority”, and “insulting
by using the electronic network or by any other technology”, and
“publishing news, pictures, or audio or visual recordings, whether
directly or recorded on electronic networks that relate to unlaw-
ful interference with privacy and family life of individuals, even if it
is correct”, and “threatening or blackmailing a person in order to
induce him to do or refrain from doing an act even if this act was
legitimate, using the electronic network or any means of informa-
tion technology.”

It is noteworthy that most of the interrogation with the aforemen-
tioned detainee revolved around a video he recorded and pub-
lished, in which he declares standing in solidarity with the farmers
of the Jordan Valley, and invites people to purchase their products,
especially in light of the Corona pandemic. He was interrogated
about a Facebook page that published his recorded video in a lives-
tream, and his relationship with that page, which he denied any re-
lationship with it, or the livestream broadcasted on that page since
the video was recorded.

The Magistrate's Court in Tulkarm extended his detention on 11
June 2020 for fifteen days, he got another extension on 25.6.2020
for a period of seven days, and on 1.7.2020, the court refused,
after reviewing the investigation file, the Public Prosecution’s re-
quest to extend his detention again. He was released on bail of
5,000 Jordanian dinars; his file has not been referred to court, nor
has it been filed, and is still under investigation.

S.S had been subjected to several previous arrests by the security
services.
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8. l. A, a community Activist:

The General Intelligence Service in Nablus arrested the community
activist

I.A on 10 June 2020, while he was in a taxi leaving the Nablus
First Instance Court building, following his appearance before the
Court of Appeal, in another case dating back to 2018 on the basis
of “defaming the authority".

The aforementioned detainee was taken to the presiding officers
of the court, and he was re-presented to the Public Prosecution
Office for investigation once again on the charge of “defaming the
authority” in violation of Article (45) of the Decree-Law on Cyber-
crime 2018, and Article (191) of the Penal Code No. (16) 1960.
During his interrogation, he was confronted with a number of
Facebook posts, related to political opinions, in addition to other
comments on Facebook posts. The prosecution considered the ac-
cusations of the aforementioned detainee are connected to “con-
demning the president.”

On 15.6.2020 the Nablus Magistrate's Court extended his deten-
tion for 15 days, to enable the Public Prosecution to interrogate
him. On June 22, 2020, he was released upon a court ruling, on a
personal bail of three thousand dinars, and On the same day, the
Public Prosecution closed the investigation with him and referred
his case to the competent court, and charged him with an indict-
ment of “defamation against the authority”. The trial sessions in
the aforementioned case were postponed more than once be-
cause of the absence of the prosecution witness, who was fined 15
Jordanian dinars for not attending.

It is reported that A.A. has been on trial since 2018 in connection
with another case, also related to “Defamation against the author-
ity"; the case is still pending before the court until the date of pre-
paring this report.
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9. Q.B:

About 20 masked members of the Preventive Security Service in
Tulkarm arrested Q.B from inside his shop on 16 June 2020 without
showing an arrest warrant; he was released 24 hours later, without
being presented to the competent judicial authorities.

While the investigation with the aforementioned detainee focused
on his relationship with some social media pages on Facebook, he
confirmed in his testimony to Lawyers for Justice; that the Preven-
tive Security personnel and the investigators were not committed
to the preventive and precautionary measures announced under
the state of emergency.

10. F.S, an anti-corruption activist:

The Police General Investigation Agency arrested the anti-corrup-
tion activist F.S from his home in Dura, Hebron on 7.7.2020. F.S
was transferred to the Public Prosecution Office the day after his
arrest, and was interrogated on the charge of “insulting the au-
thority” in violation of Article (45) of the Decree-Law No. (10)
2018 on cybercrimes, and Article (191) of the Penal Code No. (16)
1960. His detention was extended for 24 hours, while the interro-
gation of the aforementioned detainee was based on his criticism
of corruption.

On 9.7.2020, he was summoned before the Dura Magistrate’s
Court, which extended his detention for five days before the Pub-
lic Prosecution transferred his case to the competent court on July
13, 2020. During the same session, an indictment was filed against
him, then he was rereleased on a personal bail of 100 Jordanian
dinars, since that date, the court sessions have been s postponed
six times because of the absence of Public Prosecution witnesses.
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11. Y. Kh, community activist:

The Preventive Security Service in Nablus arrested the community
activist Y.Kh on 11 July 2020, after being called for an interview
and was detained without showing an arrest warrant from the
competent authorities.

He was released the next day without being brought before any ju-
dicial authority, the interrogation was related to his activity on so-
cial platforms including Facebook, and his expression of opinion.

He confirmed, during his testimony to Lawyers for Justice, that se-
curity personnel did not adhere to health protocols during his inter-
rogation or when he was transferred to the medical examination at
a medical center.

12. M.M, community activist:

The General Intelligence Service in Bethlehem arrested the com-
munity activist M.M on 12 July 2020, after being summoned for
investigation under an unofficial warrant that does not bear any
header or seal for the aforementioned agency.

He was interrogated about his solidarity with the then-detained
activist F.S about posting a video on Facebook denouncing the ar-
rest, he was released the next day without being brought before
any judicial authority.
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\! 13. A.R:

an activist:

The General Intelligence Service arrested the activist A.R. from his
workplace in Ramallah on July 21, 2020, he was transferred to the
General Investigation Agency of the police; the investigation fo-
cused on his affiliation with the trade union movement, the “unit-
ed Palestinian movement”.

On 22 July 2020, the Public Prosecution investigated him on the
charge of “defamation against the authority”, in violation of Ar-
ticle (45) of the Decree-Law No. (10) 2018 regarding cybercrime,
and Article (191) of the Penal Code No. (16) 1960, on the grounds
alleged writing of posts on Facebook.

The Public Prosecution referred the case of the aforementioned ac-
tivist to the Ramallah Magistrate's Court on July 23, 2020, with
a list of indictment. Since that date, the court sessions followed;
which were postponed several times to summon witnesses of the
Public Prosecution Office, while he was released on 28 July 2020
on personal bail.

In his testimony to Lawyers for Justice, he confirmed that security
personnel and investigators did not abide by the protocols of the
Ministry of Health.

14.S.2:
The first arrest:

The Preventive Security Agency arrested the activist S.Z. on July
21, 2020, while he was leaving a supermarket in Hebron with his
three and a half year old child, meanwhile, the security forces beat
him during his arrest, accompanied by his child, who burst into
tears.

The aforementioned activist asked the security services to allow
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him to drive his young child to the house, but the security forces
refused to do so. And was transferred to the Preventive Security
headquartersin Hebron, later, and after the insistence of the afore-
mentioned activist, he was allowed to send his child to his area of
residence; the child was removed from the security vehicle and
left alone in the main street, to return to his home with the help of
neighbors, while the activist confirmed that his child suffered psy-
chological and nervous shock as a result of this behavior.

The investigation with the activist S.Z focused on his sharing of a
post written by another activist on his personal Facebook page,
later, he was transferred to the Joint Security Committee and then
to the General Investigation Department, before he was released
without being presented to any judicial authority.

In his testimony to Lawyers for Justice, he confirmed that security
personnel and investigators did not abide by the protocols of the
Ministry of Health.

The second arrest:

A joint security force arrested the activist S.Z. from his home in He-
bron on 12/14/2020, without presenting an arrest warrant from
the competent authorities, he was later referred to the Police Gen-
eral Investigation Agency, which interrogated him over a video at-
tributed to him, and was accused of inciting people to go out on
the streets, and another video criticizing the president.

On 15.12.2020, he was presented to the Public Prosecution,
which investigated him about “participating in an illegal gather-
ing", in reference to the meeting of the Al-Jabari family in the city
of Hebron. His detention was extended for 24 hours, although he
did not participate in the aforementioned meeting.

On 16.12.2020, the Public Prosecution . transferred his file to
the competent court, after the investigation was closed, he was
charged with an indictment containing “violation of the state of
emergency measures” and “illegal gathering”, while the compe-
tent court decided to release him on the same day on a personal
bail of 500 dinars, and the trial sessions in the aforementioned case
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kept taking place since its date, because of the absence of witness-
es.

The General Investigation Authority refused to precede the court’s
release order, but he was transferred to the General Intelligence
Service in the city of Hebron, and then to the General Intelligence
headquarters in Jericho, and was placed in a cell without any jus-
tification, despite the issuance of a decision to release him, which
was implemented later on12/17/2020.

The activist S.Z rose, in his testimony to “Lawyers for Justice" al-
legations of ill-treatment and insult, he informed the group that
he was forced to stand for 7 hours without being allowed to sit,
he also described the conditions of his detention at the intelligence
service as “poor"”, as he was reported to have been held in open
cold, dirty warehouses.

15. M.B:

a university student:

The Preventive Security Agency in Tulkarm arrested the university
student and community activist M .B on 28 July 2020, after he was
summoned for interrogation at the agency's headquarters without
taking into account the death of his grandfather on the day of his
arrest, which also coincided with the Eid Al-Adha holiday.

The Public Prosecution office investigated activist M. B on the
charges of “insulting power” and “inciting racial strife” in viola-
tion of Articles (191) and (150) of the Penal Code in force No. (16)
1960, while the Tulkarm Magistrate's Court extended his deten-
tion for ten days.

The arrest of the aforementioned activist came on basis of publish-
ing a video on social media expressing his solidarity with the activ-
ists of the public movements, who were arrested on their way to
participate in the “Tafah Al-Kil " demonstration, which condemns
corruption, in downtown Ramallah on July 19, 2020. He also crit-
icized through the video the government's actions and policies
during the pandemic.
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On 4 August 2020, the Public Prosecution referred his investiga-
tion file to the court and charged him with an indictment, in the
same session, Tulkarm Magistrate's Court sentenced him to 3
months imprisonment, the imprisonment was replaced by a fine,
without a lawyer present to defend him.

16.A.Z

a Journalist and an activist:

Members of the Preventive Security Agency in civilian clothes ar-
rested the activistand journalist A. Zin Nablus on August 17, 2020,
after leaving his workplace at ten in the evening without showing
any arrest warrant. He was referred to the Public Prosecution Of-
fice the next day, which investigated him on the charge of “insult-
ing the authority”, in violation of Article (150) of the Penal Code
No. (16) 1960.

The investigation with the activist A.Z focused on facts directly re-
lated to his work and his media activities, and about satirical televi-
sion programs he presented in 2016.

Later, his detention was extended by a decision of the Nablus
Magistrate's Court for a different period, before he was released
on September 21, 2020, on bail of 5,000 Jordanian dinars.

The prosecution referred his investigation file to the Magistrate’s
Court and recited the indictment against him. Among the charges
against him: “Publishing information that stirs up racist strife
through the electronic network or any means of information tech-
nology,” In addition to the charge of “transmitting various news
by any means of communication in order to cause panic”, and the
charge of “insulting the authority”; all charges mentioned in the
indictment were based on Decision Law No. (10) 2018 regarding
cybercrime.

While the trial sessions continued until October 27, 2020, before
he was arrested by the Israeli occupation forces. The sessions were
postponed more than once before his arrest in order to hear the
prosecution witness, after delaying four sessions, the prosecution’s
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witnesses came to present their testimony, while the prosecution
did not conclude its statement.

The activist confirmed that no arrest warrant was presented to
him, he also stated in his testimony to Lawyers for Justice that “the
conditions of detention were poor in terms of the place prepared
for the arrest, not to mention the ill treatment which he referred to
as cruel in light of his exposure to a health setback during arrest. He
also stated that the security personnel did not adhere to health and
safety controls by the protocols of the Ministry of Health approved
under the state of emergency upon his arrest and during his inter-
rogation, in addition to refusing to act on the recommendation of
the National Hospital in Nablus with his health deteriorating, es-
pecially his need to stay in the hospital under medical supervision.

Afterhis arrest, he was taken to his home which was searched with-
outshowinga search warrant; his computer and storage disks were
confiscated. While he confirmed that his personal computer was
broken upon receipt, and all its contents had been erased which
is related to his media and engineering work since 2012, one of
the storage disks was damaged, and the mobile phone he received
contained piracy programs, pictures of his WhatsApp and Messen-
ger conversations were sent to a person called “Abu Ahmed" from
the Preventive Security Service, as well as changing the passwords
for his social media accounts. He also stated in his testimony that:

“One of the times, | knocked at the door because | feel short of
breath; an officer came to tell me: “Here we go! You started with
your games! You think that we will let you go? You think you are a
man out there, then show us your manhood here!”

After a while, | knocked on the door again and when the security
officer came, | was unconscious on the floor, | was taken to the
officer's room, who said: “We want to get you out of here to Al-Ju-
naid prison, and there they will take good care of you".

“While | was in the officer's room, another officer came and asked
what was wrong with me, the officer replied:" He is pampering on
us", sol told him: “I told you that | need a doctor”, he ordered me
to face the wall of the room and raise my hand, then they trans-
ferred me to the military medical services, which decided that |
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needed a hospital. When | was transferred to the National Hospi-
tal, tests showed that | was suffering from acute bronchitis; | was
given a medical injection but the officer refused the doctor’s rec-
ommendation to keep me under surveillance for 24 hours. "

The defense was prevented from visiting him while he was de-
tained by the Preventive Security Service, except for one visit three
days before his release.

The occupation authorities released him on November 24, 2020,
after spending nearly a month in Israeli prisons, asserting in his tes-
timony that the investigation he was subjected to by the occupa-
tion forces was related to facts that he was being investigated by
the Preventive Security Service.

17. F.B:
A student at Birzeit University:

The Preventive Security Agency arrested the student at Birzeit Uni-
versity F. A on 6.9.2020 from inside his home in Jenin, and was
transferred to the Public Prosecution Office the day after his arrest,
and his detention was extended for 48 hours; while the prosecution
investigated him on charges of “collecting and receiving money for
an illegal association.” in addition to the charge of “insulting the
authority.” contrary to the text of Article (45) of the Decree-Law
No. (10) Of 2018 regarding cybercrime, as evidenced by Article
(191) of the Penal Code No. (16) Of the year 1960, due to some
posts on his Face book page in which he criticizes the authority and
accuses its leaders of corruption, according to the prosecution, the
investigation file also stated that he “belongs to illegal organiza-
tions within the university,” referring to the student blocs.

On 9 September 2020, the Public Prosecution referred his file to
the Jenin Peace Court and charged him with an indictment, while
the court decided to release him on a notary bail of four thousand
Jordanian dinars, and since its date, the court sessions continued to
summon the prosecution witnesses.
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He raised allegations of torture, bad-treatment, and insults; he
confirmed that he was beaten four times by the security forces and
the investigation officers of the Preventive Security Service, and
it was stated in the investigation report of the Public Prosecution
when he was questioned that “after examining the aforemen-
tioned body, a scratch on his head was found where he reported
that it was a result of being beaten by members of the security ser-
vices," While he was summoned more than once after his release
to meet with the security apparatus.

18. M. A:

Political and community activist, pharmacist:

Members of the Preventive Security Agency in civilian clothes ar-
rested the political and community activist M. A in the city of Dura
in the Hebron governorate on October 18, 2020, without showing
any arrest warrant from the competent authorities, after he refused
to respond to a summons from the Preventive Security Agency for
an interview and after posting this refusal on his Face book page.

M_.A. confirmed that he was summoned three times before his ar-
rest, he was held for more than ten hours at each interview, during
this period, his posts on Face book are investigated.

The aforementioned activist was released the day after his deten-
tion, without being brought before any judicial authority, among
the things that he was interrogated about, his refusal to comply
with the last summons directed at him, and posting the refusal on
Face book, moreover he was warned of the need to respond in case
he was summoned later.

Activist M.A. confirmed in his testimony to “Lawyers for Justice"
that the security personnel who arrested him were not bound by
the protocols of the Ministry of Health established under the de-
clared state of emergency, while he was handed a personal mask,
he also confirmed the commitment of security personnel inside the
headquarters to wear masks.
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19. K.A:

A freed prisoner:

The General Intelligence Service in Nablus arrested the freed pris-
oner Kh. A on 16 December 2020, after security forces stormed
his house and searched it without showing a search warrant from
the competent authorities, on 17.12.2020, he was brought before
the Public Prosecution, which investigated him for “defamation
against the public authority.” contrary to Cybercrime Law No. (10)
Of 2018, on basis of a post attributed to him criticizing Palestinian
political figures.

On the same day, he was brought before the Magistrates Court,
which decided to extend his detention for 7 days, and then he was
released on December 27, 2020.

The General Intelligence Service refused to release him, in com-
pliance with the court's decision at the time, while the aforemen-
tioned agency informed him that his release would be according to
what the agency decided, not the court. He stated in his testimony
before “Lawyers for Justice" The investigator told him that “he will
not be released on the same day in order to let him know that the
executive authority is higher than the judiciary.”

He raised allegations of torture and bad-treatment such as being
beaten while being transferred to the detention center, beaten
with an electric stick on his feet, he was insulted during the inter-
rogation, as well as insulting his religious feelings, and the securi-
ty personnel also asked him to repeat some sentences during the
beating where they used to tell him according to his testimony:" -
Say that Abu- Mazen is my master, and Majed Faraj is my master”

He also reported being beaten and insulted during the eight-day
investigation period, where he was hit with fists on the head, and
as a result, his sense of hearing weakened, and he was detained
ina1.5m * 1.5m- cell, was forced to take off his shoes and socks,
and to stay in light clothes, and putting cold water where he was
standing, moreover, he requested a referral to a doctor, but the in-
vestigators refused.

He reported to the group that security personnel gave him a mask
during his arrest, while the preventive measures were not observed
inside the detention center.
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Secondly: Detention for freedom of association:

1. .N:

A union and community activist and a freed prisoner:

The Preventive Security Service in Tulkarm arrested the community
activist and freed prisoner I. N on 14 April 2020 and was referred
to the Public Prosecution, which investigated him on the charge of
“collecting and receiving money from illegal associations.” The re-
cord of inferences stated in the details of the accusation that it was
related to collecting donations from merchants and citizens.

He told the group that the arrest and the investigation with him
were about assistance for poor and needy families in light of the
Corona pandemic and collecting funds to distribute food parcels
among them.

Subsequently, the Magistrate's Court decided to extend his deten-
tion for 7 days, and on April 21, 2020, the court decided to extend
his detention for an additional three days in order to bring the in-
vestigation file.

On 23 April 2020, the Magistrate's Court decided to announce his
innocence, after referring the file to the court and filing an indict-
ment against him,

In June 2020, the occupation forces arrested him, and he was sen-
tenced to six months in prison and a fine of three thousand shekels,
on charges of providing aid and belonging to a banned organiza-
tion, then he was released in November 2020.
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The Preventive Security Agency in Yatta arrested F.M on 28 April
2020; the Public Prosecution investigated him about “the charge
of collecting and receiving money from illegal associations."” while
the investigation with him revolved around the distribution of food
parcels to poor families, during the period of closure of the city,
due to the spread of the Corona epidemic.

The Public Prosecution extended his detention for 24 hours, and
later the Yatta Magistrate's Court decided to extend his detention
for five days, and he was released on 5 April 2020 on bail, while
the Public Prosecution decided to save the file due to insufficient
evidences.

3. A.D:

Distribution of food parcels:

Preventive Security forces in Tulkarm arrested A.D on 10.5.2020
after being summoned illegally to meet the agency. And he was
detained without presenting an arrest warrant from the competent
authorities, while he was released the next day without being pre-
sented to any judicial authority.

He confirmed in his testimony to “Lawyers for Justice” The inves-
tigation with him centered on his accusation of distributing food
parcels to the needy, denying that, indicating that this is the third
arrest by the security services.

He also confirmed that the investigators did not abide by the health
and safety conditions stated in the protocols of the Ministry of
Health under the state of emergency during his investigation.
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4. A.A:

A university student:

The General Intelligence Service in Ramallah arrested the univer-
sity student and legal activist A.A on May 16, 2020, while he was
outside at night with his colleagues; he was released the next day
without being brought before any judicial authority.

He said in his testimony to “Lawyers for Justice.” That he was
arrested while returning with colleagues from an iftar during the
blessed month of Ramadan, in light of the closure imposed due to
the Corona virus, but the investigation with him focused on dis-
tributing food parcels to the needy and his political affiliation, in
addition to interrogating him about his brothers, who are detained
by the occupation authorities.

He raised allegations of torture and bad-treatment in the form of
beatings, hanging from the ceiling, and beating with a whip, and
intentionally insults him, he also reported that he was arrested
more than six times by the security services in the past.

5. O.K:

A Union activist:

The General Intelligence Service in Ramallah arrested the union ac-
tivist O. Kh while he was on Rukab Street in the center of Ramal-
lah on July 19, 2020 without showing any arrest warrant, on the
same day; he was handed over to the Police General Investigation
Service in Ramallah on basis of his attempt to participate in a sit- in
organized by the activists of the “Tafah Al-Kil " movement to de-
mand reforms and fight corruption.

While the detainee confirmed in his testimony to the “Lawyers for
Justice” group “that his arrest took place while he was standing
alone and not in any gathering, he was also committed to wearing
gloves and a mask in accordance with the protocols of the Min-
istry of Health declared under the state of emergency. He added
that the General Investigation Department had investigated him
about the reason for his presence at the Manara roundabout, and
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whether he was following any movement, violation of the emer-
gency law, and illegal gathering.

The Public Prosecution investigated him on 20 July 2020 regard-
ing the charge of “participating in anillegal gathering." contrary to
Article (165.1) of the Penal Code No. (16) Of 1960 in reference to
the demonstration called by activists to demand reforms and fight
corruption, he was also interrogated about the charge of “violat-
ing the measures taken to achieve the goals of declaring the state
of emergency,” contrary to Article (1.3) of the 2020 Law by De-
cree regarding the state of emergency, and decided to extend his
detention for 48 hours.

On 22 July 2020, the Ramallah Magistrate's Court decided to ex-
tend his detention for fifteen days, on 28 July 2020, the Public
Prosecution closed the investigation and transferred its file to the
competent court, then the Magistrate's Court decided to release
him in exchange for a personal guarantee, while the trial sessions
continued since its date, and was postponed several times for the
purpose of informing the prosecution witnesses.

The aforementioned detainee stated to “Lawyers for Justice” that
security forces did not abide by the health protocols declared under
the state of emergency during his arrest or interrogation.

He went on hunger strike with other detainees against the same
reasons; while in the last four days of his arrest he refused to go to
the medical services, he confirmed that in the first three days of his
strike, the security forces refused to provide him with a pain reliev-
er, and smoke was withdrawn from him in the last four days of the
strike.
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6. M.Q:

The Police General Investigation Department in Ramallah arrested
M.Q on 19 July 2020, without showing any arrest warrant, while
he was passing by after the security servicesisolated the Al-Manara
roundabout in the city center in order to prevent the “Tafah Al-Kil
" movement which was demanded by activists to fight corrup-
tion, while he confirmed in his testimony to “Lawyers for Justice"
that his arrest was random, indicating that it was not related to the
aforementioned sit-in.

The police investigated him about his accusation of not adhering
to health precautions, and his relationship with the “Tafah Al-Kil
" movement, and was presented to the Public Prosecution on July
20, 2020 and requested to be given 24 hours to be able to hire a
lawyer, he was presented to the Public Prosecution again on July
21, 2020 and was interrogated about the charge of “participat-
ingin anillegal gathering." contrary to Article (165.1) of the Penal
Code No. (16) Of 1960, in reference to the demonstration called
by activists to demand reforms and fight corruption, he was also
investigated for “violating the measures and procedures taken to
achieve the goals of declaring a state of emergency, in contraven-
tion of Article (1.3) of the 2020 Law by Decree regarding the state
of emergency, he was released by the Public Prosecution office on
the same day in exchange for a personal bail of 500 Jordanian di-
nars.

He also reported that the security forces did not adhere to health
and preventive measures during the arrest and investigation phase,
and he is tried before the Magistrate's Court after his file has been
transferred by the Public Prosecution to the aforementioned court,
and the trial sessions continue since its date, because the Public
Prosecution’s witnesses are not present.
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Union activist:

Members of the Preventive Security Agency in Ramallah arrested
the union activist M.Q while he was on Rukab Street in the center
of Ramallah on July 19, 2020, without showing any arrest warrant,
on the same day, he was handed over to the General Investigation
Service of the police in Ramallah due to his attempt to participate
in a sit-in called by activists of the “Tafah Al-Kil “* movement to de-
mand reforms and fight corruption.

He stated in his testimony to “Lawyers for Justice” that he was ac-
companied by his 12-year-old child while they were in a restaurant
after the sit-in was canceled and broke up by the security forces,
where he was followed up and arrested from inside the restaurant.

As for inside the detention center he reported that 12 people were
arrested in an area not exceeding 2.5 meters * 3 meters, he also
raised allegations of bad-treatment which includes screaming at
the detainees in the detention and court, while he announced his
hunger strike, and being pressured to stop the strike; cigarettes
were confiscated from him as part of that.

In turn, the Public Prosecutor’s Office investigated him on 20 July
2020 regarding the charge of “participating in an illegal gathering,
contrary to Article (165.1) of the Penal Code No. (16) Of 1960; in
reference to the demonstration called by activists to demand re-
forms and fight corruption, he was also investigated for “violat-
ing the measures taken to achieve the goals of declaring a state of
emergency." contrary to Article (1.3) of the Law of 2020 regarding
the state of emergency, and it was decided to extend his detention
for 48 hours.

On 22 July 2020, the Ramallah Magistrate's Court decided to ex-
tend his detention for fifteen day, and on 28 July 2020, the Public
Prosecution closed the investigation and transferred his file to the
competent court, the Magistrate's Court decided to release him
against a personal guarantee, while the trial sessions have contin-
ued since its date, and it has been postponed several times because
the witnesses of the Public Prosecution Office are not present.
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—=' 8. A.D:

Union activist:

Civil-dressed security personnel arrested the union activist A. D on
19 July 2020, while he was on Rukab Street, in the center of Ra-
mallah; because of his participation in the “Tafah Al-Kil " demon-
stration, which activists called to demand reforms and fight cor-
ruption without showing an arrest warrant, he was handed over to
the General Investigation Service in the police in Ramallah on the
same day, due to attempt to participate in the sit-in.

The Public Prosecution investigated the aforementioned detainee
on 20 July 2020, regarding the charge of “participatingin anillegal
gathering." contrary to Article (165.1) of the Penal Code No. (16)
Of 1960, in reference to the demonstration called for by the ac-
tivists. He was also investigated on charges of “violating the mea-
sures taken to achieve the goals of declaring a state of emergen-
cy"”, in violation of Article (1.3) of the 2020 decree-law regarding
the state of emergency, and it was decided to extend his detention
for 48 hours.

On July 22, 2020, the Ramallah Magistrate's Court decided to
extend his detention for 15 days, and on July 28, 2020 the Public
Prosecution closed the investigation and transferred his file to the
competent court, the Magistrate's Court decided to release him in
exchange for a personal guarantee, while the trial sessions contin-
ued since its date, and it was postponed more than once to sum-
mon witnesses of the Public Prosecution Office. After his arrest,
the aforementioned detainee declared a hunger strike, and stated
in his testimony to the “Lawyers for Justice” group that he was be-
ing pressured to stop the strike, he also confirmed that there was
overcrowding inside the room in which he was detained, in addi-
tion to the failure of security personnel to take the preventive and
health measures declared under the state of emergency.
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9. M.Sh:

Security forces arrested M. Sh from the center of Ramallah on July
19, 2020, before he was transferred to the General Investigation
Agency in the police force in Ramallah without showing an arrest
warrant, while he was passing by after the security forces isolated
the Al-Manara roundabout in the city center, in order to prevent
the “Tafah Al-Kil demonstration that activists called for under the
slogan of fighting corruption, while the aforementioned detainee
confirmed that his arrest came randomly, stressing that it was not
related to the aforementioned sit-in.

He was referred to the Public Prosecution on 20 July 2020, and
was investigated on the charge of “participating in an illegal gath-
ering."” contrary to Article (165.1) of the Penal Code No. (16) Of
1960 and in reference to the demonstration called by activists to
demand reforms and fight corruption, he was also investigated for
“violating the measures taken to achieve the goals of declaring a
state of emergency,” contrary to Article (1.3) of the 2020 Law by
Decree regarding the state of emergency, his detention was ex-
tended for 48 hours, before he was released on 21 July 2020 on
personal bail.

10. F.S:

Union activist:

The police arrested the union activist F.S on 19 July 2020, while on
his way to participate in the “Tafah Al-Kil " demonstration which
activists and trade unionists called for to demand reforms and fight
corruption.

Subsequently, on 20 July 2020, he was referred to the Public Pros-
ecution, and he was investigated on the charge of “participating in
anillegal gathering." contrary to Article (165.1) of the Penal Code
No. (16) of 1960, and "violating the decisions, instructions, and
measures taken by the competent authorities,” contrary to Arti-
cle (1.3) of the decision by the law of 2020 regarding the state of
emergency, and his detention was extended for 48 hours.
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OnJuly 22, 2020, the Ramallah Magistrate's Court decided to ex-
tend his detention for 15 days, while his file was transferred to the
competent court, and in the July 28, 2020 session, the prosecution
charged him with indictment, and decided to release him on a per-
sonal bail in the same session, while the trial sessions have contin-
ued since his date. As it was postponed more than once until the
prosecution’s witnesses are called.

The aforementioned detainee declared during his arrest a hunger
strike, according to his testimony, to protest against his arrest since
he was suffering from heart prostate and rheumatism diseases.

He also reported that he was held in a room measuring 6 by 7 me-
ters, with twenty-eight detainees without spacing measures, while
confirming that the security personnel do not adhere to the health
protocols established under the declared state of emergency, in
addition to the lack of the necessary health conditions at the place
of arrest.

11. J.Kh:

Union activist:

Security forces in civilian clothes from the General Intelligence Ser-
vice arrested the union activist J.Kh on 19 July 2020, while he was
alone in the city of Ramallah, during the “Tafah Al-Kil " demon-
stration which was called by activists and union activists to demand
reforms and fight corruption without presenting a legal arrest war-
rant; the detainee testified to “Lawyers for Justice” being trans-
ported by a private police bus with others, without adherence to
preventive health and safety measures, and without the security
personnel who arrested him committed to preventive measures in
compliance with health and safety protocols declared under the
state of emergency.

Later, on 20 July 2020, he was transferred to the Public Prosecution
and was interrogated about charges of “participating in an illegal
gathering”, in violation of Article (165.1) of the Penal Code No.
(16) Of 1960, and “violating decisions, instructions and measures
taken by the competent authorities,” contrary to Article (1.3) of
the decree-law of 2020 regarding the state of emergency, and his
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detention was extended for 48 hours.

OnJuly 22, 2020, Ramallah Magistrate's Court decided to extend
his detention for 15 days, and his file was referred to the competent
court in a session on July 28, 2020, and the prosecution charged
him with an indictment, then he was released on personal bail in
the same session, while the trial sessions have continued, the trial
sessions were postponed one after another for the purpose of call-
ing the prosecution witnesses.

Mr. Jamil announced an open hunger strike, and he was trans-
ferred to the hospital twice due to his health deterioration, he tes-
tified to “Lawyers for Justice” that investigators from the General
Investigation Agency opened his personal phone and searched its
contents.

12. A.H:

Union activist:

Security agents from the police force arrested the union activist A.H
on 19 July 2020, while he was alone in the vicinity of Al-Manara
square in the center of Ramallah, while Mr. A.H was on his way to
participate in the “Tafah Al-Kil " demonstration which activists and
union activists called for to demand reforms and fight corruption,
without presenting a legal arrest warrant, while he confirmed in
his testimony to “Lawyers for Justice” that he was committed to
wearing a mask and gloves, he was transported by a security ve-
hicle belonging to the National Security Agency, and he confirmed
that he had been subjected to verbal abuse by one of the security
personnel while he was being transported to the detention center.

He stated that he was subjected to verbal abuse again during the
investigation by the General Investigation Department, and was
held in a room accompanied by 23 detainees without observing
health procedures under the declared state of emergency.

Later, on 20 July 2020, he was referred to the Public Prosecution
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Office and was investigated on charges of “participating in an il-
legal gathering”, in contravention of Article (165.1) of the Penal
Code No. (16) Of 1960, And “violating decisions, instructions and
measures taken by the competent authorities,” contrary to Article
(1.3) of the decree-law of 2020 regarding the state of emergency,
and his detention was extended for 48 hours.

On July 22, 2020 Ramallah Magistrate's Court decided to extend
his detention for 15 days, and the prosecution referred his file to
the competent courtin a session on July 28, 2020 and charged him
with an indictment, then he was released on personal bail in the
same session, while the trial sessions have continued since its date,
and court sessions have been postponed several times for the pur-
pose of calling the prosecution witnesses.

The aforementioned detainee declared an open hunger strike
during his arrest, and was pressured to suspend the strike.

13.J.A:

Union Activist:

On 19 July 2020, the Palestinian police force detained Union Ac-
tivist J.A while he was participating in a protest organized by trade
union activists at al Manara Square in the City of Ramallah in the
West Bank, against corruption. He reported that the police detained
him without presenting him a legal arrest warrant. He also said that
“they weren't committed to the preventive measures announced by
the Palestinian government to curb Covid-19 pandemic.

He charged that he and other detainees were crammed into one ve-
hicle to go through medical examination before being held in prison.

He charged that the room where he was held was overcrowded
with detainees. Tafah Al-Kil

On the following day, he was referred to the Public Prosecution
Office for investigation. He was accused of “"participating in a
protest organized illegally,” in violation of Article (165.1) of the
Penal Code No. (16) Of 1960, and “decisions measures taken by
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the competent authorities, " in violation of Article (1.3) of the De-
cree-Law of 2020 on the state of emergency. He was remanded for
48 hours.

OnJuly 22, 2020, Ramallah Magistrate's Court decided to extend
his detention for 15 days as the Public Prosecution referred his
case to the competent court for a session on July 28, 2020. He wa
charged of incitement before he was released on personal bail on
that date. The court hearings were deferred several times pending
Public Prosecution witnesses.

After J.A went on hunger strike, he was admitted into hospital
as his health condition deteriorated . He stayed in hospital with his
hands tied to bed.

He continued his strike and refused to receive any medication, and
thus his health condition deteriorated.

After promises to release him, he underwent an urgent catheter-
ization operation. In his statement to Lawyers for Justice, he re-
ported that he was pressed to stop his strike. He also reported that
his children were pressed to convince him to end his strike. .

14. M. A:

Union Activist:

The General Intelligence Service arrestedunion activist M.A on 19
July 2020, in the center of Ramallah without showing an arrest
warrant, while he was photographing on personal phone.

He reported to “Lawyers for Justice”, that the agents of the intel-
ligence service pointed a shot-gun at him and asked him to turn
off his phone. They also inquired about the entity they assumed he
was working for asa “spy”.

He was accused of spying for “Tafah Al-Kil “ Movement. However
he reported that the officers who arrested him were relatively com-
mitted to Covid-19 health prevention measures, while thee inter-
rogators of the General Investigation Agency weren't.

On 20 July 2020, he was referred to the Public Prosecution. “Par-
ticipating in a protest organized illegally ," in violation of Article
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(165.1) of the Penal Code No. (16) Of 1960, and “decisions mea-
sures taken by the competent authorities,” in violation of Article
(1.3) of the Decree-Law of 2020 on the state of emergency. He
was remanded for 48 hours.

On July 22, 2020, Ramallah Magistrate's Court decided to extend
his detention for 15 days, and referred his case to the competent
court that issued an indictment against him on July 28, 2020. He
was released on personal bail at the same session. The courts' hear-
ings were deferred several times, pending witnesses' presence at
the Public Prosecution Office.

15. F.B:

Union Activist:

On 19 July 2020, Security Services arrested Union Activist F.B.
while he was participating at Al-Manara Square in Ramallah, in
the protest organized by “Tafah Al-Kil “ Movement. The protest
was held to call for called for reforms and elimination of corrup-
tion. He wa arrested without being presented with a legal arrest
warrant. He reported in his statement to LFJ that he was compelled
to wear gloves and a mask as part of Covid-19 preventive mea-
sures, while the police who were holding him weren't committed
to that while accompanying him to medical services. He added
that he and other detainees were crammed into one car. The police
pushed him into the car over other inmates, he stated. .

He confirmed that he was subjected to ill-treatment in detention
He explained that the police were shouting at him and at other de-
tainees. He was held in a cell of two and a half * five meters with
8 other detainees in violation of all health preventive measures. .

On 20 July 2020, he was referred to the Public Prosecution and
was investigated on charges of:
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“Participating in a protest organized illegally,” in violation of Ar-
ticle (165.1) of the Penal Code No. (16) Of 1960, and “decisions
measures taken by the competent authorities,” in violation of Ar-
ticle (1.3) of the Decree-Law of 2020 on the state of emergency.
He was remanded for 48 hours.

On July 22, 2020, the Ramallah Magistrate's Court decided to ex-
tend his detention for 15 days, and on July 28, 2020 the Public
Prosecution referred his file to the competent court . He was char-
gedin the same session and was released on personal bail. The
courts' hearings were deferred several times, pending witnesses'
presence at the Public Prosecution Office.

He went on hunger strike, but pressured to suspend it. He report-
ed that they used to keep the food in front of him for hours though
knowing of his objection to breaking his hunger strike. He reported
that he was transferred to hospital for worsening health condition
and his refusal of supplements.

He also reported that he wasn't given neurological medications
that he takes periodically due to seizures and convulsions and oth-
er spine problems.

16. M.Q:

Union Activist:

On 20 July 2020 the General Intelligence Service arrested the
union social activist M.Q. while he was leaving his workplace in
Al-Bireh.  He was transferred to the Police General Investigation
Department..

In turn, the General Investigation Department interrogated him
about the protest organized by “Tafah Al-Kil “* Movement and ac-
cused him of participating in the protest. Theyarrested him though
theyknewthathewasincontactwith Coronavirus-infected persons.
He was at his workplace to take some items in preparation for
quarantine with no intention to participate in any protests, he said.
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He was tested for Covid-19 waiting for the final result of the test,
but the security forces held him with the rest of the detainees. .

He stated that the cell where he was held was overcrowded with
12 people, with an area not exceeding 2 * 3 meters with 5 mat-
tresses. He added that there were no enough sheets and pillows or
ventilation.

He said that 35 detainees were crammed into one vehicle to the
court while the vehicle can take 18 people only. the court lock cell
was congested with inmates. He went on hunger strike on the first
day of his detention.

He was brought before the prosecution on July 21, 2020, which
investigated him about the charges of

“Participating in a protest organized illegally,” in violation of Ar-
ticle (165.1) of the Penal Code No. (16) Of 1960, and “decisions
measures taken by the competent authorities, " in violation of Arti-
cle (1.3) of the Decree-Law of 2020 on the state of emergency. He
was remanded for 24 hours.

OnJuly 22, 2020, the Magistrate's Court decided to extend his de-
tention for 15 days, and on July 28, 2020 the prosecution referred
his file to the competent court with an indictment. The court decid-
ed to release him on personal bail. The session was postponed until
August 17, 2020, pendingthe witness of the Public Prosecution.
The court session was postponed several times for the same rea-
son.
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17. M. K:

On December 30, 2020, Members of the General Intelligence
Service, in plain clothes, arrested M.K from his workplace in Nab-
lus. Hewas held in Al-Junaid Prison for 24 hours, before he was
brought before the Public Prosecution on December 31, 2020. He
was remanded for 48 hours for interrogation him on charges of
“inciting sectarian strife."”

He also reported that the General Intelligence Service had interro-
gated him about his union activities in university. He was also asked
about the reasons why he wasd arrested by the Israeli occupation
forces.

He was released on 3.1.2021 on a cash bail amounting to 300 Jor-
danian dinars, and his file was transferred to the Nablus Magis-
trate's Court on the same day with an indictment filed against him.
His case hasn't been disposed yet. It is worth noting that he suffers
80% of vision impairment

He reported that he had been subjected to degrading-treatment
by the interrogators, including shouting at him. He added that the
security personnel weren't heeding Covid-19 preventive measures
while they were interrogating him.

Political Detention

1. M.H:

On March 11, 2020, the General Intelligence Service detained M.
H on the charge of “possessing explosive materials, " while he was
interrogated about his political activity in 2016 and the reason of
his detention by the Israeli occupation forces.

Ramallah Magistrate's Court had extended his detention for 15
days, before he was released on March 18, 2020 on a financial bail.

The General Intelligence Agency re-arrested him on March 21,
2020, and released him on March 23, 2020.
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The Public Prosecutor's Office closed the case of Hassouna, as
there was no evidence to convict him. When he was detained for
the second time, he didn't appear before any judicial authority.

he told ‘Lawyers for Justice Group" ,that he was subjected to tor-
ture and ill-treatment. He said that he was held in a cell, known as
“the narrow refrigerator”,with hooded and with his hands cuffed
behind his back. He added that he was deprived of sleep and sub-
jected to Shabh-hung from the ceiling. He added that he was also
lashed with a whip and subjected to insult and..

He went on hunger strike for three daysin protest against his de-
tention. .

2. M.Kh:

On 16 April 2020 the Preventive Security Service arrested M.Kh
from his house in the town of Qaffin in Tulkarm, , before he was
released the next day without being brought before any judicial
authority.

He stated to “Lawyers for Justice” that he was interrogated about
his political activitiesin 2012He added that he was detained 7 times
by the Palestinian security services since 2012.

He confirmed in his statement that the security personnel weren't
committed by health preventive measures in violation of the gov-
ernment’ Covid-19-related instructions.

60



3. M.J:
Birzeit University Student:

OnJune 9, 2020, the General Intelligence service in Ramallah ar-
rested university student M.J. without an arrest warrant, , he was
brought before the Public Prosecution and was interrogated on
charge of “possessing an unlicensed weapon ", in contravention
of Article 25.2 of the Weapons and Ammunition Law of 2015. He
stated to “Lawyers for Justice” that he was detained for his polit-
ical affiliation.

He reported before the Public Prosecutor and in the presence of
a representative of “Lawyers for Justice"that he was subjected to
torture and ill-treatment. The Public Prosecutor decided to extend
his detention for a period of 24 hours, while the Ramallah Magis-
trate's Court agreed to remand him for 15 days upon request by
the Public Prosecution.

The court approved the request by “Lawyers for Justice” to call a
forensic medic to examine him as he claimed that he was subjected
to torture. He was released on 21 June 2020 on a personal bail of
one thousand Jordanian dinars. He was not examined by forensic
doctor despite the court's decision.

The file was closed by the Public Prosecution for lack of incriminat-
ing evidence.

He was presented with a medical report after his release. He said
that he had been hung from the ceiling and kept in a small cell
known as “the locker, or the refrigerator” in addition to exerting
psychological stress by letting him hear his friend's voice being
beaten and hung.

He also stated that he was held in solitary confinement for 13 days,
and was arrested several times by the security forces over the past
years.

He stated in his testimony to LFJ that the legal advisor of the Gen-
eral Intelligence incited against Lawyer Muhannad Karaja. He told
him that assigning Karaja as his defense lawyer postpones his re-
lease.
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4. K.Q:

A student at Birzeit University:

On9.6.2020 the General Intelligence Service in Ramallah arrested
university student Kh. Q after he was summoned to their office .
He was held without an arrest warrant from the competent author-
ities.

On June 11, 2020He was brought before the Public Prosecution
and interrogated on charges of “possessing a firearm,. He con-
firmed to “Lawyers for Justice" that he was detained for his politi-
cal affiliation.

he was remanded for 24 hours

Ramallah Magistrate's Court extended his detention for 12 days in
before he was released on June 21, 2020.

He claimed before a magistrate court judge and in
the presence of a representative of  “Lawyers for Jus-
tice that he was subjected to torture and ill-treatment
Lawyers for Justice requested the court to refer him to a forensic
doctor and the court agreed . However it decided to release him
.. Later, after his release, KH .Q obtained a medical report on his
health condition after he was subjected to torture.

He reported that he had been subjected to hanging from the ceil-
ing, beaten with a whip held in a cell known ( refrigerator).

During his testimony to Lawyers for Justice, he described the re-
frigerator as a very narrow wardrobe of 80 cm x 80 cm.”

The Public Prosecution decided closed the case file due to insuffi-
cient evidence. he said that he was arrested several times by the
security services during the past years.
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3. G.N:

Youth activist:

On 14 June 2020, the Preventive Security Agency in Nablus arrest-
ed the youth activist G. N. After he was summoned for an inter-
view without presenting an arrest warrant from the competent au-
thorities. the Public Prosecution held him for 48 hours, on charge
of “possessing an unlicensed firearm", in contravention of Article
25.2 of the Weapons and Ammunition Law of 1998.However he
was interrogated about his brother, who was imprisoned by the Is-
raeli occupation, and his other brother who was living abroad. He
was also interrogated about transfer of money from his brother
and his family's political activities.

On June 17, 2020, the Nablus Magistrate's Court extended his
detention fora period of 10 days, before he was released on June
24, 2020 on personal guarantee of 500 Jordanian dinars. The
Public Prosecution decided to close the file because there was no
evidence against him.

He said that he was subjected to torture and ill-treatment. Accord-
ing to his testimony to “Lawyers for Justice” , he was subjected to
hanging from the ceiling by forcing him to stand opening his legs to
about 70 cm and placing his hands back for 4 hours.

He also affirmed in his testimony that most of the investigators did
not adhere to health preventive measures.
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6. H.F:

He is a 53-year-old political activist who suffers from several dis-
eases such as hypertension, diabetes and heart disease.

On 15.6.2020 the Preventive Security Service in Tulkarm arrested
the political activist H.F. from his shop without an arrest warrant
from the competent authorities. He was brought toPublic Prose-
cution which investigated him on charges of bringing money into
the Palestinian territories without disclosing it; he was detained for
48 hours.

He reported to “Lawyers for Justice” that he was interrogated
about his relationship with another person whom the occupation
army arrested on the same day. He was interrogated about , polit-
ical activities.

7.A.B:
A political Activist.

On 13 July 2020, the Preventive Security Service in Jenin detained
political activist A.B without an arrest warrant from the competent
authorities. The Public Prosecution charged him of “possessing
unlicensed weapon.” He confirmed in his testimony to “Lawyers
for Justice” that he was held for his political activities. He claimed
that the security service detained him to prevent him from bidding
for a commercial business and allow his competitor who works for
the security service to win the bid.

On7/16/2020, Jenin magistrate's Court decided to extend his de-
tention for 15 days before releasing him on 7/19/2020., while the
Public Prosecution decided to close the case file because there is no
evidence against him.

He also stated to Lawyers for Justice that he has tested for coro-
na, but security personnel was not committed to wearing masks
during his arrest or interrogation..
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8. Y.H:

On 18 August 2020, the Preventive Security Service in Jenin de-
tained Y.H. He was referred to the “Security Committee"” in Al-Ju-
naid Prison in Nablus.

The Public Prosecution office questioned him on charges of “pos-
sessing and selling a shot-gun”. ,” He added that he was detained
for his political affiliation” .

Nablus Magistrate's Court extended his detention several times
before issuing a decision to release him on September 15, 2020,
on a cash bail of 1,000 Jordanian

dinars However, he was transferred to the security committee in
Jericho, despite the court’s decision. . He was brought before the
Jericho Magistrate's Court again, and the Public Prosecution sub-
mitted a request to extend his detention, but the Jericho Magis-
trate's Court decided to release him.

9. M. Z:

He is an employee of the Anti-Corruption Commission, a freed
prisoner from Israeli jail.

On August 18, 2020, the General Intelligence Service in Ramallah
arrested freed prisoner M., he was brought before the Public Pros-
ecution Office and interrogated on the charge of “collecting and
receiving funds for an illegal association for the sake of disturbing
public order.” while the case is related to his dues as a freed prison-
er who spent 40 months in the Israeli occupation prisons.

The Ramallah Magistrate's Court decided to extend his detention
for 15 days, .

The Public Prosecution referred his investigation file to the court
and presented indictment sheet against him. His first court session
was held on 6.9.2020, and since that date, Court hearing were
postponed, pending appearance of the prosecution witness, who
is the legal advisor of the intelligence.

On 12 January 2020, he was arrested by the occupation forces and
transferred to administrative detention.
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10. M.R:

OnAugust26, 2020, ,the Preventive Security apparatusin Tulkarm
arrested M.R. without an arrest warrant from the relevant authori-
ties, and his detention continued for three days without being ap-
pearing before any judicial authority.

In his statement to “Lawyers for Justice” he reported that he was
interrogated about his political affiliation. He also stated that the
room where he was held wasn't clean and without a bed or any
pillow. He added that the security personnel were not committed
to health preventive measures.

11. M.F:

High school student

OnSeptember 10, 2020, the Military Intelligence Servicein Tulkarm
detained high school student M.F at dawn; he was released after
hours of his detention without getting his his ID back. He was de-
tained by the same agency on the following day for three consec-
utive hours. He was informed that he should appear at the Preven-
tive Security Office later. .

On September 17, 2020, M.F went to the Preventive Security
headquarters in Tulkarm after being summoned and was held for
the next day without an arrest warrant from the competent au-
thorities. He wasn't brought before any judicial authority.

He reported to “Lawyers for Justice” that the security apparatus
had interrogated him about his political activities and his detention
in the Israeli occupation prisons.

He also affirmed in his statement that the intelligence service per-
sonnel weren't heeding preventive health measures.,

This is his third political arrest since 2018.
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m 12. N.A:
I\

Social activist.

The Preventive Security Service in Nablus arrested community ac-
tivist N.A after he was summoned for an interview on November
24, 2020, without an arrest warrant from the competent authori-
ties. He was brought before the Public Prosecution on the following
day. He was interrogated on the charge of “collecting and receiv-
ing money from illegal associations, . His detention was extended
for 24 hours.

On November 26, 2020, he was brought before the Nablus Mag-
istrate's Court that extended his detention for 15 days.

On 2.12.2020 the court decided to release him on a cash bail of
300 dinars. . And the Public Prosecution decided later to close the
file due to lack of evidences against him. .

He stated in the investigation of the Public Prosecution “that he
is not guilty, and that the charge was set as a legal excuse for his
arrest. He also said in his testimony to the prosecution:" | am a po-
litical prisoner, and | am being interrogated for participating in the
reception of my freed prisoner friend from an Israeli jail. It was my
social duty to participate as we were in Israeli prisons together. As
for illegal money, | categorically deny it.

In his testimony to “Lawyers for Justice”, he stated that the Pre-
ventive Security Service had interrogated him about educational
sessions for the Qur'an and hadith in the mosque in an attempt
to link that with organizational activity. He was also interrogated
about participating in receiving a prisoner, participating in the fu-
neral of the father of Martyr Yahya Ayyash, and about his union
activity at the university, noting that he was a former political pris-
oner for four times.

Regarding adherence to health measures, he stated that the secu-
rity personnel was committed by not more than 60% indicating
that he had interacted with a detainee who was infected with the
Corona virus. N.A. was informed that he was uninfected, but later
he found out that he was infected and his name is listed on the
Ministry of Health website.
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He stated that part of his interrogation was about his relation-
ship with “Lawyers for Justice” and its sources of funding. on
12/202020, he was summoned by the preventive security and in-
terrogated about his relationship with Lawyers for Justice.

13. A.A:

A student at An-Najah National University (Union Activist)

On November 24, 2020, the Preventive Security Agency in Nablus
arrested A.A without presenting him with an arrest warrant from
the competent authorities; he was brought before the Public Pros-
ecution the next day and interrogatedon the charge of “collecting
and receiving money from illegal associations. "

Nablus Magistrate's Court extended his detention for 7 days; this
was his fourth detention by the security services. He was ques-
tioned about his online commerce and his previous political and
union activities.

On 2.12.2020 the court decided to release him on a cash bail of
300dinars, but his family was unable to pay it. He was brought be-
fore court again on the next day despite the existence of a judicial
decision to release him. The Public Prosecution closed his case for
lack of evidence.

He stated in his testimony to “Lawyers for Justice” that most of the
security forces weren't heeding preventive health measures.

Their commitment to government instructions regarding Covid-19
preventive measures didn'texceed40% . He also confirmed detain-
ees were crammed into one vehicle when they were taken to court.

He also reported that the security service had confiscated two cell
phones from him. This caused great harm to his onlinecommerce.
He also added that he was prohibited from doing his on-line uni-
versity exams during his detention.
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14.1.Q:

On 13.12.2020the General Intelligence Service in Ramallah held
1.Q after he was summoned for an interview by phone. Hewas
brought before the Public Prosecution on 15.12.2020 on the
charge of “possessing unlicensed weapon or ammunition”,

Ramallah Magistrate's Court extended his detention for 15 days
for more interrogation. .

The General Intelligence Service interrogation with him focused
on his political affiliation, and participation in receiving one of the
freed prisoners from Israeli prisons.

he was also interrogated about raising the flags of one of the Pales-
tinian factions and his relationships with other Palestinian prison-
ers at the Israeli prisons. He said that they questioned him about
another young man detained by the General Intelligence, and his
participation in the activities of his village of Abu Shkheidem.

On December 29, 2020, a decision was issued by the Ramallah
Magistrate's Court to release him on a cash bail of 200 dinars. His
file wasn't closed as he was arrested he was arrested by the Israeli
occupation forces on 7 January 2021.

“Lawyers for Justice" contacted his sister to continue its documen-
tation of his case after he was arrested by the Israeli occupation
forces. She reported that he was subjected to torture and ill-treat-
ment; he was hung from the ceiling with his hands tied up and kept
hoodedinroom . He was slapped on face and beaten on his mouth
and back.
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15. Q.A:

An Activist, freed political prisoner.

On14.12.2020, the Preventive Security Service in Nablus detained
activist Q.A. after being summoned for an interview by phone
without an arrest warrant from the competent authorities; he re-
fused to comply with the phone call, as it was impossible to reach
the headquarters of the agency in light of Covid-19 lockdown. .

After he refused to comply with instructions he recived by phone
call, he was arrested from his home by preventive security officer,
dressed in civilian clothes, driving civilian vehicle, without show-
ing any arrest warrant.

On 15.12.2020, he was brought before the Public Prosecution,
which interrogated him on the charge of “collecting and receiving
money from illegal associations.” The Public Prosecution office ex-
tended his detention for 48 hours.

He was brought before the Nablus Magistrate's Court that decided
to extend his detention for 5 days. He was released on a cash balil
of 300 Jordanian dinars on 12/2021. On 12.12.2020, the court
decided to reduce the amount of bail to 200 Jordanian dinars.

He confirmed in his statement to “Lawyers for Justice” that he
was interrogated about previous cases and against the background
of his political affiliation. He also confirmed that interrogators
had opened his mobile phone and his Facebook, Instagram, and
WhatsApp accounts without his permission.

He claimed that he was subjected to torture and degrading treat-
ment, as he was hung from the ceiling from 1 pm until 9 pm, with
his hands tied back with iron handcuffs in chilly cold, he was not
allowed to have his foot-wear for a time.

Regarding the conditions of detention, he described the cell as un-
fit for living, due to the low temperature and dirty bed and pillow.
He was tested for Covid-19 after he was released from detention. .
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16. A.Z:

freed prisoner.

On 17.12.2020, officers of the General Intelligence service in ci-
vilian clothes detained freed prisoner (former Palestinian prisoner
at Israelijails), A. Z from his home in the village of Abu Shukhidem,
Ramallah district. His home was searched without presenting an
arrest or search warrant.

On 20.12.2020, he was brought before the Public Prosecution in
Ramallah, and was interrogated on the charge of “possessing, car-

rying or transporting a weapon or ammunition without a license"..
The PP extended his detention for 24 hours.

He was interrogated about his political affiliation, his arrest by the
occupation forces, his participation in the reception of a prisoner
freed from lIsraeli occupation prisons, and his possession of flags
and banners of one of the Palestinian factions.

On 12.12.2020, the Ramallah Magistrate's Court decided to ex-
tend his detention for 15 days, and released him on 12/30/2020
on a personal bail of 2000 dinars.Then, the Public Prosecution de-
cided to close his file since it found no evidence against him. .

He stated in his testimony to “Lawyers for Justice” that members
of the security forces themselves opened the door of his house
without permission and asked him to be ready within five minutes
He also reported that he was insulted and humiliated during inter-
rogation and that he was threatened. He added that the interro-
gator told him:" If you do not confess, | will take out your heart..
“ . He also reported that he was suffering from stomach disease
in detention, and the interrogator denied him the right to receive
medical services.
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17. A.L:

A journalist and freed prisoner.

On 21.12.2020, the General Intelligence service in Ramallah ar-
rested journalist A.L.

He was not charged at the beginning of the investigation, as stated
in his statement to “Lawyers for Justice”. The interrogator asked
him to speak without specifying the matter:" You say what do you
have? “.

After 8 days of detention, he was released. He reported that he
was held in the cell for three days without being questioned or dis-
cussed about anything. .

On 23.12.2020, the Public Prosecution questioned him on the
charge of “possessing unlicensed weapon" and decided to extend
his detention for 24 hours. He was interrogated about by the in-
telligence services about his past activities at the university and his
political affiliation.

His detention was extended for five days upon a decision bythe
Magistrate's Court.

On 12/28/2020, he wasreleased on apersonal bail of JD2000. he
also stated that the security personnel was not committed to pre-
ventive and safety imposed by the government to curb Covid-19. .

18. A.A:

Political Science student

On 23.1.2021 the General Intelligence Service in Ramallah arrest-
ed university student A.A from students’ hostel without an arrest
warrant from the competent authorities. He was released the fol-
lowing day without being brought to any judicial authority.

He stated in his testimony to “Lawyers for Justice” that he was in-
terrogated by the General Intelligence Service about student ac-
tivities and political affiliation. He was asked about the reason for
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his detention by the Israeli occupation in the past.

He claimed that he was subjected to torture, ill-treatment, punch-
ing , swearing and other forms of physical and psychological as-
saults. He was kept blindfolded and handcuffed throughout the
dayof interrogation.

He added that they threatened to transfer him to Jericho (Security
Committee) and they used to punch one of the detainees before
his eyes, telling him “your turn is coming soon” .

He also reported that the security weren't committed to Covid-19
related preventive measures. .

19. A.R:

A university student

Around eleven o'clock at night, on 25.12.2020, the Preventive
Security Agency in Ramallah detained university student A.R, ,
from a popular café in the town of Dura Al-Qara, Ramallah district,
without presenting him with an arrest warrant from the competent
authorities. He was held at the police headquarters in Al-Balou in
Ramallah ‘.

On December 26, 2020, the Public Prosecution authorized the
Preventive Security Agency, , to question him on charges of “pos-
sessing, carrying or transporting a weapon or ammunition without
a license."

On December 27, 2020, the Ramallah Magistrate's Court extended
his detention for ten days, before he was released on personal bail.

He stated in his statement to “Lawyers for Justice” that interro-
gators shouted at him while they were interrogating him abouthis
political affiliation and hanging banners for one of the Palestinian
factions as well as about his university union activities. They also
questioned him about his detention by the Israeli occupation forces.

He reported that the security personnel weren't committed to
Covid-19- related health preventive measures.
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20. Q.H:

Freed prisoner

At around eleven o'clock at night, on January 25, 2020, the Pre-
ventive Security Agency in Ramallah detained Q. H. who was
freed from Israeli jails. , , from a popular café in his hometown,
Dura Al-Qara, Ramallah district, without presenting him an arrest
warrant from the competent authorities.

On December 26, 2020, the Public Prosecution authorized the
Preventive Security Agency to question him on charges of “pos-
sessing, carrying or transporting a weapon or ammunition without
a license.”

On 27 December 2020, the Ramallah Magistrate's Court extended
his detention for ten days, before he was released on personal bail.

He stated in his statementto “Lawyers for Justice” that masked
security personnel detained and subjected to him to insults. He re-
ported that they shouted at him and dropped him to the ground.

He said that he was subjected to torture and ill-treatment, and
beating. He said that “they forced him to take off his clothes and
stand in chilly cold..

He added that the security personnel which interrogated him
weren't committed to preventive health measures.

21. A.K:

Freed prisoner

At 10:30 pm on December 28, 2020, the Preventive Security
Agency in Ramallah arrested A.K WHO WAS FREED FROM Israel
prisons from his house in the town of Beitunia without an arrest
warrant from the competent authorities.

On December 30, 2020, he was brought before the Public Prose-
cution and his detention was extended for 24 hours after being in-
terrogated on the charge of “possession of unlicensed weapon ",.
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He reported that he was interrogated about his political affiliation
and his detention by the Israeli occupation forces in the past.

On 31.12.2020, he was released before appearing before compe-
tent court.

He stated that the security force that arrested him adhered to safe-
ty and preventive measures.

22. A.A:

University Student

On December 25, 20 the Preventive Security Agency in Ramallah
arrested university student A.A after they stormed his house in the
village of Dura Al-Qara, Ramallah district and searching it without
presenting a search warrant.

On December 26, 2020, the Public Prosecution, , assigned the
Preventive Security Agency to question him on charges of “pos-
sessing, carrying or transporting a weapon or ammunition without
a license.”

While the Ramallah Magistrate's Court extended his detention for
5days upon the request of the Public Prosecution forinterrogation.
On 315t December 2020, his detention was extended for another
fifteen days for interrogation procedures.

He stated in his testimony to “Lawyers for Justice" that he was in-
terrogated about his political affiliation.

He claimed that he was subjected to ill- treatment and insult forc-
ing him to remain in the yard of the headquarters of the Security
Service in the city of Al-Bireh without clothes for the purpose of hu-
miliation, not allowing him to go to the bathroom. Theyprevented
him from seeing doctor, as the interrogator told him: “You can be
treated later”.

On 5.1.2021, the Ramallah Magistrate's Court released him on
personal bail, while the Public Prosecution transferred his file to the
competent court for prosecution. .
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He stated that the security personnel did not adhere to health safe-
ty and preventive measures and he was held in a cell of an area of
(R (107 s

23..5. Z:

On 25 December 2020 the General Investigation Agency in Ra-
mallah arrested S.Z from Palestine Medical Complex in Ramallah
withoutan arrest warrant from the competent authorities as he was
accompanying one of his relatives who was injured during events
in his town of Deir Abu Mishaal nearRamallah while the police at-
tempted to arrest a citizen from inside the village.

On December 27, 2020, his file was referred to the Ramallah Mag-
istrate's Court on charges of “destroying the property of others,and
“illegal gathering,” “in violation of the state of emergency,” and
“treating an employee with violence,” He was questioned about
his political affiliation, and the reasons for his arrest by the Israeli

occupation forces.

On 6 June 2021 ,he was released by a decision of the Ramallah
Magistrate's Court, on a cash bail of two hundred Jordanian dinars.

He claimed that he was subjected to torture and ill-treatment, in-
cluding beating, shabh (standing in difficult position, and insult-
ing His hands were tied and his eyes were covered during the pro-
cess of his arrest.

He stated that security personnel and interrogators did not abide
by safety and preventive measures during his arrest and during his
interrogation.
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24. A. H:

University Student

On 12/25/2020, the Preventive Security apparatus in Ramallah
detained A.H They broke into his house, searched it, and confis-
cated computers and mobile phones without presenting a search
and arrest warrant from the competent authorities.

A.H. went the agency's headquartersin the city of Al-Bireh. After
2 days, he was referred to the agency's headquarters in Bitunya,
west of Ramallah.

On December 26, 2020, the Public Prosecution authorized the
Preventive Security apparatus to interrogate himon charges of
“possessing, carrying or transporting a weapon or fire ammunition
without a license,”

Ramallah Magistrate's Court extended his detention for five days
by a decision of the.

On December 31, 2020, the Magistrate's Court decided to extend
his detention for 15 days to continue interrogationupon request by
the Public Prosecution. He was released on 5.1.2021 on personal
bail after his file was transferred to the competent court and an in-
dictment was filed against him.

He reported to “Lawyers for Justice” that the actual investigation
with him was about his political affiliation. He also raised allega-
tions of torture and bad treatment that he was subjected to at the
agency's headquarters in Al-Bireh, before his transfer to the Bei-
tunia center, where he was hung from the ceiling, forced to take
off his clothes, tied his hands in the window while it was open in
the bitter cold, he thrown on the ground and cold water poured on
him, and was insulted along with God swearing.

As for the health protocol, he stated a partial commitment to safe-
ty and prevention measures was incomplete
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25. M.Z:

Free prisoner from Israeli Jail

On 3 January 2021 , the General Intelligence Service in Ramallah
arrested the released prisoner M.Z from his home without present-
ing an arrest warrant from the competent authorities.

On5.1.2021, he was referred to the Public Prosecution Office and
investigated for “possessing, carrying or transporting a firearm
without a license.” On the same day, the Ramallah Magistrate’s
Court decided to extend his detention for 15 days pending inter-
rogation.

He was interrogated by the General Intelligence Service about po-
litical affiliation, detention by the occupation forces, and union ac-
tivities during his university studies, even though he had graduat-
ed six years ago.

The Magistrate's Court released him on 6.1.2021 on a personal
bail of 3,000 Jordanian dinars.

In his testimony to “Lawyers for Justice” group, he stated that he
went on hunger strike from the first day of his detention and raised
allegations of torture and bad treatment in which he was forced
into a cell known as “the wardrobe or the refrigerator” most of the
time during his days of detention when he was forced to sit in a
squatting position (Shabh).

He also reported the interrogators’ incited against “Lawyers for
Justice” group, where the investigator told him: “If you had not
appointed them to represent you , your detention would not have
been extended for fifteen days in court.”

The Public Prosecution decided later to close the file and not refer it
to the competent court due to the absence of evidence against him.

He also affirmed in his statement that the security forces did not
commit to safety and preventive measures in line with the require-
ments of declaring the state of emergency during the arrest and in-
vestigation process, while he confirmed that he was arrested twice
by the Israeli occupation forces and once by the Palestinian security
apparatus too .
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W 26. A.Sh:

Freed prisoner.

¥

On January 18, 2021 General Intelligence Service in the Nablus
governorate arrested the liberated prisoner A.Sh, after being sum-
moned for an interview. Hehad been previously arrested; he had
been summoned to meet the security services more than five times
since the beginning of the month of December .2020, while he
was informed that he was being detained an hour and a half after
his appearance for the interview with the agency.

He stated in his testimony to “Lawyers for Justice” , upon his ar-
rival at the headquarters of the General Intelligence that the inter-
rogators started insulting the law as heisintern lawyer and saying:
“Do you think that you will get away with us because you are a
lawyer? The law is with you in court; we will see how the court will
benefit you.”

On 19.1.2021, he was brought before the Public Prosecution and
interrogated about the charge of “defaming the public authority”
according to the Cybercrime Law, and “inciting sectarian strife” .|t
decided to extend his detention for 48 hours.

On 21 January 2020, the Nablus Magistrate's Court decided to
release him on bail of 500 Jordanian dinars. He was interrogated
by the General Intelligence about a post attributed to him on Face
book related to his repeated summons to meet with the Preventive
Security and General Intelligence agencies, his detention by the
occupation, and his political affiliation.

He stated during his interrogation session by the Public Prosecu-
tion that the intelligence agency did not interrogate him about the
charges leveled against him. Rather, they interrogated him about
his detention at the Israeli prisons and his political affiliation.

He also reported that, before his release, he was threatened by the
aforementioned agency not to implement the court’s decision, as
the investigator told him: “We will release you, but we are waiting
for a phone from the governorate. You know that our laws are a
joke, and we are the ones who draft them. “

He also stated that security personnel and interrogators did not
commit to safety and preventive measures.
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27. 1. A:

A university student

On February 1, 2021, the General Intelligence Service in Nablus
arrested the university student I.A without presenting an arrest
warrant from the competent authorities.

On the following day, 2.2.2021, he was brought before the Pub-
lic Prosecution, which interrogated him on charges of “possess-
ing, carrying or transporting a weapon or ammunition without a
license."

He denied before the Public Prosecution the accusation leveled
against him while confirming that he was interrogated by the Gen-
eral Intelligence Agency was about his friend who was detained by
the same agency.

On 10 January 2020, the Nablus Magistrate's Court decided to
arrest him before he was transferred to the Intelligence Prison in
Jericho Governorate. His detention was extended for five days by
a decision of the Jericho Magistrate's Court.

On 14 January 2021, the Jericho Magistrate's Court released him
on a bail of 1,000 Jordanian dinars. However, the release decision
was not implemented, as a file was transferred the next day to the
Nablus Magistrate's Court and sentenced him for three monthsim-
prisonment before it was replaced with a fine In light of his depri-
vation of the right of defense due to the suspension of work by the
lawyers bar on that date.

28. H.A:

A university student

On January 29, 2021, the General Intelligence Service in Nablus
arrested the university student H.A. after searching his home, on
January 31, 2021. He was brought before the Public Prosecution,
which interrogated him on charges of “possessing, carrying or
transporting a weapon or ammunition without a license."
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Interrogators centered on his activities in university and his political
affiliation.

On 31 January 2021, the Nablus Magistrate's Court decided to ex-
tend his detention, while the Public Prosecution referred his file to
the competent court on February 15, 2021, and presented with
indictment.

In the same session, the court decided to sentence him to imprison-
ment for 3 months before it decided to replace the imprisonment
with a fine, given that he was deprived of the right of defense due
to the suspension of work by the union on that date.

After his release, on 24 February 2021, he was arrested by the Is-
raeli occupation forces.

29.B. A
A university Student

On 9.2.202, the General Intelligence Service in Nablus arrested
university student B. A. He was brought before the Public Pros-
ecution on February 10, 2021, for interrogation on charges of
“possessing, carrying or transporting a weapon or fire ammunition
without a license” .

It decided to extend his detention for 24 hours.

On 11 February 2021, the Magistrate's Court decided to extend
his detention for 15 days to continue interrogation , based on the
request of the Public Prosecution.

While interrogation centered on his activities inside the university
and his political affiliation.

On February 14, 2021, the Public Prosecution sent his file to the
competent court with an indictment. The court decided to release
him in the same session on bail, so that he would be released on the
following day after his relatives provided the required guarantees.

The occupation forces arrested him after he was released.
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30. Kh.A:

Released prisoner and former political detainee

The Preventive Security Agency in Jenin arrested the liberated pris-
oner Kh.A. On 9/19/2021, at about three o'clock in the morning,
after searching his home, with a search warrant without present-
ing an arrest warrant from the competent authorities.

On 10.1.2021, the aforementioned detainee was transferred to
the Public Prosecution, to extend his detention for 48 hours, after
being interrogated on charges of “possessing, carrying or trans-
porting a weapon or fire ammunition without a license”, while he
was released later on 11.1.2021.

He was interrogated by the Preventive Security Agency about cas-
es related to his previous detention by the occupation forces.

He stated in his testimony to the “Lawyers for Justice” group that
the security meninside the detention center were constantly shout-
ing at him, as well as at the moment of arrest when he stated that
they shouted at him and at his family, while he was threatened to
be transferred to Jericho prison.

He also stated that the commitment to safety and preventive mea-
sures was partial during the arrest process, while these procedures
were not adhered to inside the detention center in line with the re-
quirements of the declaration of the state of emergency, in addi-
tion to the transfer of 12 detainees to the prosecution in a vehicle
that can accommodate seven people only.

31. A.D:

A university student and a former prisoner.

The Preventive Security Agency in Nablus detained university stu-
dent and the liberated prisoner from Israelijail A. D on 16.12.2020
after he was summoned by phone to meet with the agency, where
he stated in his testimony to the Lawyers for Justice group that
he had been suffering from torn ligaments and was forbidden to
move for two weeks according to the doctor's instructions, but the
security forces threatened his father with the necessity to attend
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the interview, under pain Forcibly arresting him from home in case
of non-compliance.

He was brought before the Public Prosecution which decided to ex-
tend his detention for 24 hours after being interrogated on charges
of “collecting and receiving money from illegal associations,” be-
fore the Nablus Magistrate Court decided to extend his detention
for five days for the first time and three days for the second time,
before he was released on December 21. 2020 in exchange for a
personal guarantee of one thousand Jordanian dinars and the Pub-
lic Prosecution will later decide to save the file because there is no
evidence against it.

He was held in the agency's headquarters in the city of Nablus for
six days in a cell measuring one-meter x 2 meters. He described it
as being very cold, which caused him severe pain in the feet. The
interrogation continued, according to his testimony, throughout
the six days except for Friday and Saturday, when he stated: “l was
living in a bad psychological state, as the cellis unfit for human life.
It is full of cigarette butts, the food is of minimum standards and
the covers are in a miserable condition. “

He also stated in his testimony to “Lawyers for Justice” that the
investigation with him at the Preventive Security headquarters was
about his political affiliation, in addition to his detention by the Is-
raeli occupation forces. He also stated that the security forces did
not apply the safety and preventive measures in line with the re-
quirements of the state of emergency.
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32. A.D:

A former prisoner

On 9.2.2021, , the Preventive Security Agency in Nablus arrest-
ed the liberated prisoner from lIsraeli Jail, A. D after he was sum-
moned for an interview without presenting an arrest warrant from
the competent authorities, while he was released the next day on
February 10, 2021, without presenting him to judicial authorities.

He reported to “Lawyers for Justice” that he was detained by the
security apparatus more than fifteen times, for a total of eight
months, while he was detained by the occupation forces for ap-
proximately 26 months, and that the security forces were commit-
ted to safety and preventive measures.

He confirmed in his testimony that his interrogation with the Pre-
ventive Security Service was about the money he received as due
since he is a football player, in addition to his political party activ-
ities during his university studies, noting that his arrest came nine
months after he graduated from the university.

Detention under the governor's order

1. M.A:

High school student

On April 12, 2020, the General Intelligence Service arrested stu-
dent M.A while he was about to submit his high school exam, and
was arrested until 19 April 2020 without being brought before any
competent judicial authority. The aforementioned detainee stated
to the “Lawyers for Justice” group that he was being interrogated
based on his political affiliation. He also stated that “the detainees
at the General Intelligence apparatus were forced to sleep on the
floor without a mattress for five days after one of the detainees at-
tempted suicide by burning the bed."

84



‘ ? 2. W.B:

The General Intelligence Service in Tulkarm arrested W.B on
15.6.2020 from inside his shop without presenting a legal arrest
warrant from the competent

Authorities, before being referred under the “custody of the gov-
eriers:

The 56 years old aforementioned detainee, suffers from 65 % dis-
ability; a disc, joint problems, vision and hearing problems. He told
the “Lawyers for Justice” group that the interrogators told him
that his arrest came on basis of the political division and problems
in Gaza. He was also interrogated about a sum of money he re-
ceived from his brother abroad to treat his sister and also reported
that he had been threatened to be beaten.

Subsequently, the aforementioned detainee was released after the
group submitted an administrative appeal against the decision to
detain him at the disposal of the governor to the competent court,
but the General Intelligence Service released him before the court
issued a decision on his illegal detention without presenting him to
the competent authorities.

3. Sh. A:

The Preventive Security Agency in Jenin arrested Sh.Aon 9.8.2020,
before he was transferred to the headquarters of the Security Com-
mittee in Al-Junaid Prison in Nablus. The aforementioned detainee
was brought before the Public Prosecutor and investigated with
him about “the charge of possessing a pistol without a license”,
in violation of Article 25.2 of the Weapons and Ammunition Law
of 1998, noting that his arrest was the result of a political dispute.

The Nablus Magistrate's Court decided to extend his detention for
15 days for the first time, then agreed to extend his detention for
the second time for a similar period, but decided to release him on
1.9.2020 in exchange for a personal bail of 2000 Jordanian dinars
and a cash bail of 1000 dinars.
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Despite the release order, the security servicesrefused toimplement
it, and the aforementioned detainee was informed that he was be-
ing held in the custody of the governor of Nablus until 9.9.2020,
to be transferred later to the detention center of the Preventive Se-
curity Service in Jenin and there he was arrested until September
17, 2020, under the authority of the Governor of Jenin.

On September 17, 2020, his file was transferred to the Jenin Mag-
istrate's Court, where it decided to declare his innocence due to in-
sufficient evidences.

4. Q.A:

A former prisoner

The General Intelligence Service in Qalgilya arrested the liberated
prisoner Q. A on November 30, 2020, before he was transferred
to the intelligence service in Nablus, to be informed later that he
was arrested for “the responsibility of the governor.”

“Lawyers for Justice” group filed a complaint with the Public Pros-
ecutor's office, and another complaint to the Military Prosecutor,
on basis of arresting him under “the governor's custody”, in addi-
tion to submitting an appeal to the Court of Justice to challenge the
decision to detain himillegally.

The aforementioned detainee remained under the custody of the
governor until December 15, 2020, when his file was referred to
the Public Prosecution, which investigated him over the charge of
“collecting and receiving funds from illegal associations” in con-
travention of the provisions of Article (162) of the Penal Code No.
(16) Of 1960. Subsequently, his detention was extended for 15
days by a decision of the Magistrate's Court, and another 15 days
on December 29, 2020.

On 5.1.2021, the Magistrate's Court decided to release him in
exchange for a cash bail of 500 Jordanian dinars, which was re-
duced to 200 dinars, and a personal bail of 2000 dinars. Later on,
on 12.1.2021, his file was transferred to the competent court, and
the trial sessions have continued since its date.
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6. R.F:

A school teacher and a former prisoner Israeli prisoner.

The General Intelligence Service in Tulkarm arrested the school
teacherand the released prisoner R.F on December 29, 2020, after
he was summoned for an interview by the director of the school in
which he works.

The aforementioned detainee stated in his testimony to the “Law-
yers for Justice” group that the intelligence services summoned his
wife during his arrest and interrogated her, knowing that the in-
terrogation continued for six days intermittently, the focus of the
interrogation with him was: his political affiliation and his arrest file
with the Israeli occupation forces.

He described the cell in which he was held as a “grave” and a part
of psychological torture, in addition to being threatened to be dis-
missed from his job and to be transfered to Jericho prison (The se-
curity Committee), where they told him (you are behind the sun),
in addition to threatening to arrest his wife.

He also stated that security does not apply the safety and preven-
tive measures, in line with the requirements of the declaration of
the state of emergency.

He was later released on 3 January 2020 without going through
the legal procedures and brought before the competent judicial
authorities. The lawyer was not allowed to obtain a legal power of
attorney during his arrest.
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6. O.K:

Ajournalist

On 12/30/2020,the General Intelligence Service arrested jour-
nalist O.Kh after he surrendered to the agency after the security
forces tried to arrest him from his home and searched his vehicle
without showing a search warrant, and the aforementioned agen-
cy notified his family of the agency's intention to confiscate his car
to pressure him to surrender.

The aforementioned detainee stated in his testimony to the “Law-
yers for Justice” group that he did not receive an arrest warrant
from the competent authorities authorizing his arrest after he had
surrendered himself. He was later transferred to Jericho Prison af-
ter 1:30 am. He was released on 3 January 2021; without present-
ing it to any competent judicial authority, while the lawyer was not
allowed to obtain his signature to get the power of attorney from
him to follow the legal procedures.

The aforementioned detainee raised allegations of torture and bad
treatmentin the form of hanging from the ceiling, insults, and con-
tinued interrogation with him during the dawn hours, in addition
toinsulting and cursing.

He was interrogated , according to his testimony, by a group of
Lawyers for Justice, was around his political affiliation and political
relations, while he assured the group that this was his fifteenth de-
tention by the security apparatuses .

He reported that security during his arrest and interrogation did
not apply the safety and preventive measures in line with the re-
quirements of the declaration of the state of emergency and was
detained in a one-meter * one and a half meters cell while being
tested for corona after being transfered to the intelligence prison
in Jericho.
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Vyh‘m Arrests for other reasons:
1. A.H:

Ajournalist

The security services arrested journalist A. H, on May 15, 2020,
at a checkpoint in Anabta at the entrance to Tulkarm governorate.
Subsequently, the aforementioned detainee was referred to the
Public Prosecution which investigated him on charges of “insult-
ing an employee while doing his job", “defaming employees and
the public authority,"and“violating the decisions, instructions,
measures taken by the competent authorities to achieve the goals
of declaring the state of emergency,” and" obstructing the work
of law enforcement agencies and preserving public order and the

competent personnel.

On May 18, 2020, the Tulkarm Magistrate's Court decided to ex-
tend his detention for 15 days, while the same court decided to re-
lease him on May 21, 2020, in exchange for a personal guarantee.
Later, the Public Prosecution transferred his file to the competent
court regarding the charges against him, and since that date, the
trial sessions continue.

The aforementioned detainee stated in his statement to “Lawyers
for Justice" group that he was going with a member of his family to
a-sewing workshop in Anabta in Tulkarm to bring cloth for work in
light of the closure imposed on the provinces due to the spread of
the Corona epidemic.

He also raised allegations of torture and bad treatment during his
arrest, as the security forces prevented them from passing, despite
the passage of many other vehicles without any problems, and af-
ter an argument between him and the officer at the checkpoint,
the officer hit him in the face with a water bottle, In addition, oth-
er security officers beat him with rifle butts and threw him on the
ground.

“Within seconds, they threw me to the ground beat me with
punches and kicks with the legs from 5-10 soldiers, which | do not
count exactly. At that time, my head was injured and needed two
medical stitches, | lost my molar with a punch from a soldier, the
blood filled my face and my blouse torn by the assault.
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“1 put my hands on my head and neck to avoid any seriously harm-
ful to happen, at that time, the lieutenant tried to defend me, but
unfortunately he took a punch under his eye, when submitting a
medical report of the lieutenant's stroke, the hit was attributed to
me; could | hit the only officer who tried to defend me? And they
let the soldier who slapped me in the beginning to witness against
el

“Atthe police station, a clear statement was directed to me:" Give
up your right and we are following the matter and go back to your
home and shut up”. | agreed to the proposal on the condition that
| see the results of the investigation before relinquishing my right to
file a complaint against the security, but to my surprised, my words
did not satisfy them, and they decided to imprison me since then
with accusations that | did not memorize because they were many.

In his testimony, he stated that the security forces did not apply the
safety and preventive measuresin line with the requirements of the
declaration of the state of emergency, as they were holding 15 de-
tainees within several meters that included a toilet inside the room.

2.1.B:

Community activist

The General Intelligence Service in Tulkarm arrested the activist
|. B, on 6 March 2020, at dawn hours, while he was released the
next morning after a keen follow-up by the lawyer of the “Lawyers
for Justice” group without going through any legal proceedings or
being presented to any judicial authority.

He stated in his testimony to the “Lawyers for Justice” group that
his interrogation was about the presence of camerasin the building
in which he lives, the source of funding for his business, and the
password for his Face book account. The aforementioned detainee
also mentioned that he was arrested several times by the security
services.
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j 3.B.H:

A student at An-Najah National University.

The Preventive Security Agency in Nablus arrested university stu-
dent B. H, on October 27, 2020, and later, on October 29, 2020,
the Public Prosecution authorized Preventive Security to investi-
gate him on charges of “collecting and receiving money from il-
legal associations.” He denied the accusation or any connection
with unlawful associations, while he stated in his testimony to the
“Lawyers for Justice" group that the actual investigation with him
was about his brother who studies abroad, and about the informa-
tion on his mobile phone, while the issue of money was addressed
on the fifth day of his arrest, which he denied. He stated that he
works with his fatherin a building materials store and that the mon-
ey belongs to the family.

On 1.11.2020, the Nablus Magistrate's Court decided to extend
his detention for 5 days to complete the investigation procedures
and requested to provide her with the investigation file, and on
4.11.2020 the court decided to extend his detention for 9 days
even though the prosecution did not comply with the court’s re-
quest to bring the investigation file.

On 10 November 2020, the Magistrate's Court decided to release
him in exchange for a cash bail of 300 Jordanian dinars, while the
Public Prosecution decided to save the file due to insufficient evi-
dences.

The aforementioned detainee in his testimony to the “Lawyers for
Justice” group raised allegations of torture and bad treatment and
reported that he was pushed during the arrest process. During one
of the interrogation sessions, he was handcuffed from the back,
as well as beaten on his face while covering his eyes. The afore-
mentioned detainee also stated that he was arrested four times by
the Palestinian security services, while he was arrested twice by the
occupation forces.
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4. A.A:

On 24 July 2020, the police force in Jenin arrested Sheikh A.A, for
performing Friday prayers in a public square in the town of Burgin,
Jenin district, and in his statement to the “Lawyers for Justice"
group, he stated that after a security force came to the town and
confirmed that it was forbidden to hold prayers, he announced
through the mosque’s loudspeakers that Friday prayers would not
be held, after that, the police allowed him to perform the prayer
in a public square while maintaining the distance, and as a result
he repeated the call for prayer. After 7 minutes of the end of the
prayer, and based on the instructions of the police officer, he was
informed of the necessity to accompany the security forces, the
scene soon turned into altercations with the worshipers, and police
fired tear gas canisters at the crowd.

According to his testimony , it was proposed to the police to follow
them to the headquarters after five minutes to avoid any problem
between the police and the crowd. Howeverthe police refused that
and insisted to take him to the center, where he was forced to sign
a pledge not to hold prayers. Then, he was transferred to prison
after taking his testimony informing him that he is detained, ac-
cording to his testimony to the group; Although there was a prior
agreement with the police that he would be released upon signing
the pledge not to hold prayer with people again, his release was
delayed until the evening, without being brought before any judi-
cial authorities.

He reported that while being transported in Police and Nation-
al Security vehicles, the police officers were not bound by safety
and preventive measures in line with the requirements of the state
of emergency declaration. And that he was transferred directly to
a small room designated for detention without being examined,
especially since he was an old man. He described the aforemen-
tioned detention room as small, while with three other detainees
with him.
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5. M\.J.

The Preventive Security Agency has arrested M.J in the Qalgilya on
3.12.2020, several days after his brother was arrested before he
was transferred to Al-Junaid Prison in Nablus.

The interrogation of the aforementioned detainee was about his
brother, who was also detained during that period, and pressured
him, as he said, to take information related to “his brother's activ-

ity. "

On 5.12.2020, the Public Prosecution authorized the Preventive
Security Agency to investigate the aforementioned on charges of
“collecting and receiving funds from illegal associations.”

On 6.12.2020, the Magistrate's Court decided to extend his de-
tention for 7 days, before he was released on 12.12.2020 on bail
of 1000 Jordanian dinars.

The aforementioned detainee stated in his testimony to the “Law-
yers for Justice” group that the investigators in the Preventive Se-
curity Agency did not apply the safety and preventive measures in
line with the requirements of the declaration of the state of emer-
gency. He also reported the poor detention situation in the first cell
in which he was arrested, as it contains only a small opening for
ventilation. , Before he was transferred to another room in better
condition than the previous one, but he described placing the mat-
tress in it as unsanitary.
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Findings and Recommendations:

1. The group initially affirms its absolute rejection of all Presidential Decree is-
sued by the President of the Palestinian Authority, including Presidential
Decrees related to restricting freedom of opinion and expression that re-
strict constitutional rights stipulated in the Palestinian Basic Law, including
Decree-Law No. (10) Of 2018 regarding cybercrime.

2. The group affirms its rejection of all decisions by laws related to the extension
of the state of emergency, due to its unconstitutionality, and the group
believes that the declaration and extension of the state of emergency
have been exploited by the the executive authority who manipulated and
preached the law under the pretext of the state of emergency.

3. Continuing the bullying and exploiting of the executive authority over the
legislative and judicial authoritieswill destroy the principle of separation
of powers, and build up no trust between the people of Palestine and its
own regime, where the Palestinian people eager for just and free society,
they get hit and challenged by a dictatorchip leaders play with rules and
manipulate the law the way that sever their own filthy interest. among the
forms of this abuse; The continued issuance of decisions bylaws (Presiden-
tial Decrees) to enhance the control of the executive authority over other
authorities, in addition controlling the work of the judiciary and the public
prosecution.
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4. The increase of the arbitrary arrests, detention on behalf of the governor,
without legal procedures nor human rights into consideration, un apply-
ing the rights under the Palestinian Basic Law, such as freedom of opinion
and expression, freedom of work, union activity, freedom of political and
party pluralism. These all are bullying over the Palestinian law.

5. Using the state of emergency to justify serious human rights violations.

6. various occupied governorates, with their concentration in the northern
governorates, while many activists were re-arrested more than once
during this period. The justifying of the ( Security committee in Jericho or
Nablus and elsewhere in still occupied Palestine and what is under the Pal-
estinian Authority is a blatant violation for human right, we call urgentand
prompt closer to these inhuman prisons, where political prisoner put un-
der torture, “ the one who inter hell facility is vanished, and the one who
leaves it is reborn.

7. The public prosecution preserving a large number of cases without referring
them to the court, the issuance of acquittal decisions in other cases by the
courts, and the absence of any judicial process in some files, indicate the
use of detention as a punishment and the lack of seriousness of the inves-
tigations and lack of relevance to the charges attributed to the detainees.

8. The assertion of more than 50% of the detainees that they are not fully or
partially committed to safety and preventive measures from the moment
of arrest until release, demonstrates the exploitation of the declared state
of emergency to carry out arrests based on the freedom of expression, the
right of union action, and party pluralism.

9. There was no commitment to fair trial guarantees and standards.

10. The group confirms monitoring and documenting the allegations of tor-
ture and ill-treatments.

11. The absence of oversight and accountability over the work of the securi-
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ty apparatuses strengthening the Public Prosecution to continue bullying
over the judiciary in Palestine.

12. Inciting the security apparatuses against the “Lawyers for Justice" group
and obstructing its work.

13. The cases covered in this report include those that were followed up by the
group.

Recommendations:

1. The group stresses the need to reverse and cancel all decisions of laws (Pres-
idential Decrees) restricting human rights.

2. Restricting the declaration and/or extension of the state of emergency, to
ensure that its declaration is not arbitrary.

3. Stop of all forms of arbitrary detention based on exercising constitutional
rights guaranteed under the Palestinian Basic Law.

4. Stopping the interference of the executive authority in the work of the judi-
ciary, preventing the interference of the security services to influence the
work of the judiciary and the public prosecution, and stopping the deten-
tion policy at the disposal of the governor (as administrative detention).

5. Activating oversight and accountability over the actions of the executive au-
thority and the security apparatuses to ensure the check and balance sys-
tem.

6. Respect and apply the legal texts mentioned in the Palestinian Basic Law, the
Criminal Procedures Law, and relevant regulatory laws, as well as interna-
tional standards for fair trials; to ensure that the arrest procedures are not
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arbitrary, and to respect fair trial guarantees for the basic right of human
being in Palestine is inevitable.

7. To stop all forms of incitement practiced against the “Lawyers for Justice"
group.

8. The group calls on the Public Prosecutor to open serious investigations on
the allegations of torture and the ill-treatments mentioned in the detain-
ees' testimonies.
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